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To test, inspect and transfer of semiconductor at high speed
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Financial Highlights

2007
RM’000

2008
RM’000

2009
RM’000

2010
RM’000

TURNOVER

9,612

9,311

3,210

19,683

GROSS PROFIT

4,787

4,328

1,965

9,476

DEPRECIATION

(255)

(409)

(708)

(782)

AMORTIZATION OF DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

(183)

(197)

(159)

(40)

INTEREST EXPENSE

(21)

(27)

(51)

(142)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

252

(1,491)

(961)

2,250

43

(2)

(16)

(29)

TAXATION
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION

295

(1,493)

(978)

2,221

66,998

67,088

67,088

67,088

0.4

(2.2)

NET TANGIBLE ASSETS PER SHARE (sen) **

21.90

20.05

19.40

23.38

R&D EXPENSES (‘000)

(676)

(834)

INVENTORY

5,560

5,826

5,132

7,485

RECEIVABLES

3,562

2,219

2,001

8,815

(3,078)

(2,417)

9

265

NO. OF ORDINARY SHARES IN ISSUE (‘000)
BASIC EPS (sen) *

2011
RM’000

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

NOTES
*
The basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is arrived at by dividing the Group's profit attributable to shareholders (before pre-acquisition profit but
after taxation) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
**
The Net Tangible Assets (NTA) Per Share is arrived at by dividing net tangible assets value attributable to ordinary shares by the number
of ordinary shares in issue.

Turnover (RM’000)

Gross Profit (RM’000)

Profit Before Taxation (RM’000)

15,653

6,955

2,029

19,683

20,000

10,000

17,500

15,653

6,955
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am
honoured and pleased to present the annual
report and audited financial s t a t e m e n t s
of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad for the
financial year ended 31 October 2011.

OUR INDUSTRY
The buoyant sentiment that accompanied the recovering economies globally in the second half of 2010
proved to be a catalyst for the semiconductor industry, as demand for consumer electronics returned to the
fore. However, the positive rebound was tempered in mid-2011 as the European economic crisis began to
unravel, stemming foremost from Greece’s inability to repay its debt collection.
Worldwide semiconductor revenue grew 0.9 percent from 2010, reaching $302 billion in 2011, according
to the latest preliminary results by Gartner, Inc. After a strong start to the year, worries about the strength of
the macroeconomy slowed equipment and semiconductor orders in 2011. The industry did well in the early
part of the year, in many cases entering the year with backlog from an exuberant 2010. But uncertainty
about the state of the macroeconomy set in at the midpoint of the year. Consumers held off purchases,
and infrastructure expansion plans languished as governments resisted assuming more debt. Equipment
inventories began to build as the year progressed, with resulting ripples throughout the semiconductor
industry.
PERFORMANCE REVIEW
The Group posted a lower revenue of RM15.7 million in the current financial year, a decrease of RM4 million
or 20% from the previous corresponding financial year of RM19.7 million as a result of the slowdown in
semiconductor industry.
On a product group basis, semiconductor back-end equipment, both gravity and tray, contributed 92% of
our total revenue generated during financial year 2011. The balance was made up of upgrading projects
and spares and services. As for geographical coverage, about 98% of our sales went to Asia while the rest
went to United States of America.
In spite of the lower revenue, the Group achieved net profit of RM2 million this financial year as compared to
RM2.2 million during previous financial year, reflecting a better net profit margin of 13% versus 11% from the
previous financial year.
2011 was notable as the Group managed to decrease its gearing and achieve a lean balance sheet with
total borrowings reducing to RM1.3 million from RM3.3 million previously, and cash and cash equivalents of
RM6.6 million, compared to the previous year’s RM2.3 million.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)
During the year under review, VisDynamics continued to carry out diverse range of CSR activities that are
reflective of the company’s intention of giving back to society.
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Chairman’s Statement (cont’d)
Environment
The environment has inexorably become a growing concern for all. VisDynamics played a part by
maintaining the plants and trees which were planted to beautify the surroundings and also to create a
conducive environment. We are proud of our ‘green building’, designed in an environmental friendly manner
with efficient utilization of the energy and resources. There are also facilities to assist physically challenged
members of our society in the navigation and use of our building.
As part of conservation, VisDynamics practice recycling. Recycling bins are placed to collect and segregate
metal, paper, plastic and wires. Every third week of the month, the recyclables will be donated and sent to
Tzu Chi Melaka, a non-profit charity organization.
Community
Contributing to the underprivileged, marginalized and needy is a vital part of VisDynamics’ CSR objectives.
During the year, VisDynamics has contributed both monetary and non-monetary to charity organizations to
help the retarded children, poor family, single mothers and the old aged who are neglected by their family.
The company has also made some cash donation to the Thai flood victims.
In an effort to instill a sense of caring and saving lives, a Charity Blood Donation campaign has been jointly
organized by VisDynamics and Malacca General Hospital, which has received an applaudable response
from employees and their family members and friends, vendors and also neighboring companies.
Workplace
As part of staff welfare, VisDynamics actively organizes a variety of recreational activities such as festive
gatherings, birthday gifts, sports events for example badminton and futsal to create an amiable workplace
for its staffs.
Training & Career Opportunities
It is our practice to offer internships to a number of undergraduates who are required to fulfill their practical
training requirements. Apart from learning technical skills, these undergraduates had the opportunity to
gain insight of our corporate culture, our processes and our operations. These young people may well be
attracted to join us upon graduation.
PROSPECTS
The impact of the slowing macro economy, high inventories and a sluggish PC industry, due to both weak
demand and the flooding in Thailand will temper the outlook for 2012. The current SEMI Year-end Consensus
Forecast anticipates a moderate decline of 10.8% in 2012 for worldwide sales of new semiconductor
manufacturing equipment.
The slowdown is expected to last through the second quarter of 2012. By that time, the supply and demand
should be in balance with the semiconductor side possibly even beginning to see some undersupply. Once
the supply is balanced, DRAM and foundry will need to begin to increase spending to meet an increase in
demand as consumers resume spending and the PC market rebounds, and hence 2013 is expected to be
the next growth year.
I begin to see some silver lining on the horizon. With the strong financial and sufficient cash flow position, we
can anticipate and take advantage of the expected upturn in demand.
APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to record our deepest appreciation to all management and
staff for all their hard work during the past year, as well as for their continued dedication and unwavering
loyalty. Our sincere thanks and appreciation also go out to clients, investors, bankers, suppliers, business
associates, media and the government authorities for their invaluable guidance, assistance and confidence
in the Company.
Last, but not least, my thanks goes to my fellow Board members for their invaluable contributions, advice and
guidance.
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Significant Events Of The Year

Annual Dinner

Ramadhan

Christmas

Happiness Centre For The Mentally Disabled
Children Home

Chinese New Year

Donation to Thai
Flood Victim

Recycle, Donate &
Save the Earth

Get together lunch
with Independent
Directors

Blood Donation
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Board of Directors

Standing from left to right:
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Lee Chong Leng

-

Chief Technical Officer / Executive Director

Ong Hui Peng

-

Machine Software Department Manager /
Executive Director

Choy Ngee Hoe

-

Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin

-

Chairman / Independent Non-Executive Director

Wang Choon Seang

-

Independent Non-Executive Director

Vincent Loh

-

Independent Non-Executive Director

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad (677095-M)

Board of Directors (cont’d)
Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin
66 years of age / Malaysian
Non-Executive Independent Director
Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (“Datuk Azzat”) was appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director on 9
February 2006 and subsequently appointed as the Chairman on 23 April 2010. He is also the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
A lawyer by profession, Datuk Azzat graduated from Queen’s College, University of Cambridge, with a
degree of Bachelor of Arts in 1968 and a Degree of Bachelor of Law in International Law in 1969. He was
admitted to the Honourable Society of the Middle Temple, London in 1970.
From 1970 to 1979, Datuk Azzat was an Administrative and Diplomatic Officer with the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, during which time, he served as Assistant Secretary of Association of Southeast Asian Nation (ASEAN)
and Zone of Peace, Freedom and Neutrality (ZOPFAN) Divisions, Second Secretary at the Permanent Mission
of Malaysia to the United Nations, Head of Chancery at the Malaysian Commission in Hong Kong and finally,
Principal Assistant Secretary, Law of the Sea Division. He has been a partner of the legal firm, Messrs Azzat &
Izzat ever since 1979.
He has served as a member of the Securities Commission and the Board of MESDAQ before its merger with
the then Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange.
Currently, Datuk Azzat serves on the boards of Boustead Holdings Berhad, KPJ Healthcare Berhad, Pulai
Springs Berhad, Boustead Heavy Industries Berhad and Axiata Group Berhad.
Choy Ngee Hoe
48 years of age / Malaysian
Executive Director / Chief Executive Officer
Mr Choy Ngee Hoe (“Mr Choy”) was appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and ESOS Committee.
Mr Choy, a major shareholder, is our Chief Executive Officer and one (1) of the founder members of
Visdynamics Research Sdn Bhd (“VRSB”), a subsidiary of our company. He is the leader of the team of
talented and experienced engineers in VRSB. He oversees our management team as well as in charge of
devising our corporate strategies and plans.
Mr Choy graduated from University of Malaya with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Mechanical Engineering
(Honours) in 1988. He began his career in the semiconductor industry in 1988 as a Process Engineer in a subsidiary
of one (1) of the well-known Multi-National Corporations (MNCs), National Semiconductors Corporation, in
Melaka. Mr Choy was exposed to manufacturing and process technologies covering molding, strip/laser
marking, solder plating, trim and form, electrical tests, reliability test and all the way to final pack in various
consumers, industrial and military/aerospace products. Other than process related responsibilities such as
yield improvement, cost savings, upgrades, productivity enhancement, equipment qualification, product
transfer etc, he was also actively involved in new product development that required him to work with the
corporate R&D team. His last position in National Semiconductor Corporation was Equipment Manager.
Mr Choy joined Telford as Operations Manager in 1994 and helped form and head TQS Manufacturing Sdn
Bhd (“TQSSB”). TQSSB is a Tape and Reel (TNR) contract manufacturer. He was later promoted as Business
Director in TQSSB where he was heavily involved in semiconductor equipment development.
In 1997, Telford acquired the backend equipment division of a major semiconductor Integrated Device
Manufacturer (IDM), Texas Instruments Incorporated, where he was a member of the acquisition team. Telford
equipment division was then spun off to become the Semiconductor Technologies & Instruments (STI) group
of companies. Mr Choy was made President of STI Sdn Bhd, which he helped form. In 1999, Telford and the STI
group of companies were later united under ASTI Holding Ltd (“ASTI”) and listed on the Singapore Exchange
Ltd, Singapore. Mr Choy also held directorship and chairmanship in various international ASTI subsidiaries and
helped ASTI with another major acquisition, the Reel Service Ltd group of companies, making ASTI one of the
world’s largest TNR contract manufacturers. He resigned from ASTI at 31 December 2002 and subsequently
set up VRSB with the rest of the promoters.
Annual Report 2011
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Board of Directors (cont’d)
Lee Chong Leng
47 years of age / Malaysian
Executive Director / Chief Technical Officer
Mr Lee Chong Leng (“Mr Lee”) was appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005. He is also a
member of ESOS Committee.
Mr Lee is our Chief Technical Officer (“CTO”) and one (1) of the founder members of VRSB. In his capacity, Mr
Lee oversees our Vision Software, Mechanical Design, Machine Software and Equipment Assembly sections.
In addition, he is also our R&D project leader, in which he is in charge of the overall R&D activities that we
undertake. He is involved in the formulation of corporate strategies and implementation of the R&D policy.
Mr Lee graduated with both Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science and Bachelor of Engineering
Degree (Honours) in Electrical Engineering from University of New South Wales in 1989.
Upon his graduation, he joined as a Test Engineer in the subsidiary of one (1) of the well-known semiconductor
MNCs, National Semiconductors Corporation, in Penang. During 1990 to 1997, he acted as an R&D Engineer
for Powermatic Sdn Bhd in Petaling Jaya, Selangor which specialized in the manufacturing of security system,
time management system and computer peripherals. In 1997, he joined TQS Manufacturing Sdn Bhd, a
subsidiary of ASTI, which specialized in the TNR solution for semiconductor back-end industry, as Engineering
Manager for two (2) years. In 1999, he was transferred to STISB, a subsidiary of ASTI, where he held the post
of Engineering Manager.
Mr Lee resigned from ASTI and STISB on 15 November 2002 after which he and the rest of the promoters
formed VRSB where he assumed the position as Engineering Manager and subsequently CTO. His vast
experience and technical know-how throughout his twenty two (22) years of employment history has gained
him reputable recognition from the industry.
Ong Hui Peng
36 years of age / Malaysian
Executive Director / Machine Software Department Manager
Ms Ong Hui Peng (“Ms Ong”) was appointed as the Executive Director on 14 January 2005. She is one (1) of
the founder members of VRSB. Presently, she manages our Machine Software section and is responsible for
all our machine software development projects. She contributes actively in R&D activities undertaken by us
under the leadership of the CTO. Other than that, Ms Ong participates in the formulation and implementation
of R&D strategies. She graduated from University of Malaya with a Bachelor’s Degree (Honours) in Computer
Science in 1999.
Ms Ong started her career in the semiconductor industry in 1999 as a Software Engineer in STISB, a subsidiary
of ASTI, specializing in machine software development, and later as a Section Head of Machine Software.
Ms Ong resigned from STISB on 15 November 2002 after which she and the rest of the promoters formed
VRSB where she assumed the post of Section Head of Machine Software Development and subsequently
Machine Software Department Manager. Her specialization in the software development and experience
during her career has been recognized by the industry.
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Board of Directors (cont’d)
VINCENT LOH
61 years of age / Malaysian
Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr Vincent Loh (“Mr Vincent”) was appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director on 23 April 2010.
Mr Vincent qualified as a chartered accountant in 1974 from the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales. He was made a Fellow (FCA) in 1977.
Mr Vincent joined the PA Consulting Group (UK-based international management consultants), initially
located in Singapore for 6 years and later back in London. He was responsible for PA’s financial, HR and
administrative management of the Asian group and later headed the finance function for PA’s UK group whilst
gaining experience as a management consultant. He was subsequently promoted in 1988 as commercial
director of PA Technology (who provide R&D consulting in engineering, electronics, applied sciences &
biotechnology) based in Cambridge, England handling commercial negotiations, intellectual properties
and patents, in addition to managing the laboratory comprising state-of-the-art technology and staffed by
scientists, engineers and technicians. Vincent was instrumental in negotiating PA’s biggest contract of work
at that time.
In 1994 Mr Vincent was headhunted to the position of Chief Financial Officer of FACB Berhad, a main board
public-listed conglomerate based in KL. He was responsible for raising a bond issue for their Karambunai
Resort development and as part of his role, was seconded along with other senior executives to head up the
massive USD1.2 billion investment in Cambodia involving banking, education, trading and casino businesses.
In 1996 Mr Vincent was again headhunted to be general manager, corporate services for Royal Selangor
Group, the world’s largest manufacturer and retailer of pewter and upmarket giftware with subsidiaries
worldwide. In recognition of his leadership skills and improvements made to financial, operational & HR
management, he was subsequently promoted to group general manager with top and bottom-line
responsibilities. During his tenure, the group was restructured and achieved its best ever-sales growth and
profitability.
Mr Vincent currently runs his own business and management consulting practice providing strategic, financial
management and business consulting services to client companies in Malaysia, Hong Kong and Indonesia.
He also conducts training on financial and strategic management for his clients.
Operating from Kuala Lumpur, Vincent Loh has over 35 years of knowledge, exposure and management
experience in auditing, consulting, financial and business management.
Vincent’s experiences cover numerous business segments, ranging from auditing and consultancy to the
technology, manufacturing and retail sectors working for international organisations, listed companies
and local multinationals. He has also worked and lived in several countries including the United Kingdom,
Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Hong Kong and Cambodia, providing him with deep understanding of the
various cultural environments and business regimes, dealing with all levels from corporate leadership to the
shop-floor.
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Board of Directors (cont’d)
WANG CHOON SEANG
49 years of age / Malaysian
Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr Wang Choon Seang (“Mr Wang”) was appointed as the Non-Executive Independent Director on 2
September 2010.
Mr Wang graduated from University of Malaya with a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical/Electronic Engineering
(Honour) in 1987. He also completed his executive business management program in Stanford University,
California in 2002.
Mr Wang has total of twenty two (22) years of experience in semiconductor industry. He began his career
in the semiconductor industry in 1987 as a Test Product Engineer in a subsidiary of one (1) of the well-known
Multi-National Corporations (MNCs), National Semiconductors Corporation, in Melaka. He spent close to ten
years in engineering function, where he developed his technical competency in semiconductor testing and
product engineering. He developed various statistical testing methodologies, driving improvement in asset
utilization, yield, productivity, which leads to tremendous savings for the company. In 1994, he was sent to US
for one year working assignment at the head quarter of the company in California, participated in both the
new product development teams and business processes redesign program.
Upon returning to Malaysia, he was promoted to lead both the engineering and operation function in 1996,
as Test Operation/Engineering Manager. He successfully transformed the operation in achieving world class
performance in terms of quality and cost, with innovative engineering methodologies and Total Productive
Maintenance disciplines. He also pioneered and implemented the wafer ring strip testing manufacturing
process for the company, achieving manufacturing excellence and shortest time to market for new product
success.
In 2003, he was promoted to the Managing Director position, leading the entire plant, which consists of
wafer sorting, wafer bumping, assembly and test operations, plus engineering development functions within
one roof. His major contribution was the success in expanding the Melaka site by transferring the sister plant
operation from Singapore, for both commercial and aero space products. It was completed timely within
a very tight schedule, without any interruption to customer services. The Singapore site was closed and sold
upon completion of transfer, which leads to significant savings for the company. He is well known in the
company and industry, for his strategic and execution leadership qualities. Mr Wang resigned from National
Semiconductor Melaka in May 2008, his last held position was Vice President.
Mr Wang registered and formed a new company called Testhub Sdn Bhd in July 2008, providing consultancy
and test engineering services to his clients.
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Corporate Governance Statement
The Board is committed to high standards of corporate governance, which it considers as fundamental to
business integrity, maintaining investors’ trust and to deliver sustainable value to the Company’s shareholders.

Compliance
The Board has at all times been guided by the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (the Code) in
seeking to achieve the highest standards of business integrity, ethics and professionalism in all our activities.
This Corporate Governance Statement explains the key features of the Company’s governance structure
and how the Company applies the best practices of corporate governance contained in the Code.
The Board believes that the Company has throughout the financial year ended 31 October 2011 (“2011” or
the year) complied with the best practices of the Code.
1. Board of Directors
1.1 The Board’s Role
The Board receives the contribution of its Directors who bring a wide range of skills to bear in their
deliberations. Such cognate specializations such as various aspects of engineering, including
mechatronics, electronics, software and vision inspection are related to the core activities of the
company. Supporting disciplines such as strategic planning, accounting, legal and regulatory affairs,
corporate finance, banking and general management complements the engineering inputs and
provide a wide base to assist management in governance, strategy formulation, risk management,
financial and operational control, succession planning and compensation planning.
The Chairman is tasked to ensure the effectiveness of the Board. In order to provide a gauge of the
overall effectiveness of the Board as a whole, as well as contribution of individual directors, the Board
has adopted a formal framework for such assessments. During the financial year ended 31 October
2011, the Nomination Committee has conducted the assessment on the overall effectiveness of the
Board by way of self-assessment whereby areas for improvement have been identified and discussed
as a group.
1.2 The Board and Independent Directors
Composition of the Board of three (3) Executive Directors and three (3) Non-Executive Directors of
which three (3) of them are independent is in line with the Listing Requirements that at least two (2)
directors or one-third (1/3) of the Board, whichever is higher, comprises of Independent Directors.
The Board consists of Directors with the right mix of relevant experiences, skills and knowledge in the
Group context.
The role of Independent Non-Executive Directors within the Board is particular important as they
bring a balance to the Board by providing unbiased and independent advice and judgment on
the governance of the Group. The Independent Non-Executive Directors, being a reputable and
experienced individuals within their cognate fields of specialization and their business segments, also
play a pivotal role in ensuring that all important macroeconomic developments, market feedback
and behavior of competitors and customers are thoroughly and fully discussed and evaluated. Short
term plans and long term strategies are set so that interests of shareholder and stakeholders are well
taken care of.
Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin is the Chairman and Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom
concerns may be conveyed. He can be contacted by email at azzat@vis-dynamics.com.
1.3 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are exercised by different individuals. Whilst the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer collectively are responsible for the leadership of the Group,
there is a clear division of duties and responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer to ensure an appropriate balance of responsibility and accountability. The Chairman’s primary
role is to lead and manage the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the development
and implementation of strategy, and overseeing and managing the day-to-day operations of the
Group.
Annual Report 2011
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)
1. Board of Directors (cont’d)
1.4 Supply of Information
In order to carry out their duties effectively and diligently, all the Directors have been granted
unrestricted access to all information pertaining to the Group’s business and affairs. All Directors
are given notice and agenda and Board Papers containing all relevant information ahead of the
Board Meetings, to enable them to review, consider and deliberate knowledgeably on the issues
and to facilitate informed decision making. Minutes of the previous Board Meeting are circulated in
advance of Board Meeting for review and confirmation at each Board Meeting. Matters requiring
further actions and updates arising from previous Board Meeting are separately identified at each
Board Meeting to ensure all outstanding issues are sufficiently addressed and followed through and all
further information is provided for decision making. Updates on the development of the semiconductor
and semiconductor equipment industry were provided on quarterly basis to the Board to ensure all
decisions made have taken into consideration of the latest industry movement.
In addition there is a schedule of matters reserved specifically for the Board’s deliberation and
decision which include, but are not limited to, corporate plans, strategic and policy issues, major
financial decision, performance review, risk management, corporate proposals, major acquisitions
and disposals of undertakings/business/property, compensation of the CEO and senior management
and changes to the management and control structure within the Group.
The Board is updated with the latest development in the statutory and regulatory requirements
relating to the duties and responsibilities required of Directors. Courses for the benefit of Directors
are circulated from time to time for the self improvement of Directors and for the performance of
the Board as a whole. All Directors have ready access to the advices and services of the Company
Secretary and the Management of the Group and may seek independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expenses, if required for the furtherance of their responsibilities and duties.
1.5 Meetings and Attendance
In order to effectively discharge its duties and responsibilities, the Directors meet at regular intervals
for the review of the Group’s performance and discussion and deliberation of significant corporate
proposals and strategies as a team. The Board is scheduled to meet at least four (4) times a year.
Additional Board Meetings have been held as and when required.
During the financial year ended 31 October 2011, the Board had met five (5) times. Details of the
attendance are as follows:					
						
				
						
No. of Board		
										
Meetings
No Name
Designation
Attended
%
1 Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin

Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

100

2 Choy Ngee Hoe

Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director

5/5

100

3 Lee Chong Leng

Chief Technical Officer, Executive Director

4/5

80

4 Ong Hui Peng

Executive Director

5/5

100

5 Vincent Loh

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

100

6 Wang Choon Seang

Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

100

1.6 Appointment and Re-Election to the Board
Based on the Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee, recommendation of the Nomination
Committee is required for any appointments to the Board. Any new nomination received is forwarded
to the Board for assessment and endorsement.
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)
1. Board of Directors (cont’d)
1.6 Appointment and Re-Election to the Board (cont’d)
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all Directors who are appointed
by the Board are subject to re-election at the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) after their
appointment.
In line with the Articles, Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (Chairman/Non-Executive Independent Director)
and Choy Ngee Hoe (Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer) shall retire by rotation in accordance
with Article 69 of the Articles of Association of the Company and be eligible for re-election at this
Annual General Meeting.
1.7 Directors’ Training
In accordance with the Terms of Reference, the Nomination Committee is tasked with the responsibility
to ensure all Directors continuously develop themselves through training to equip themselves with the
latest development in the industries and the changes in relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
During the year, the Directors received updates on the latest industries’ trends and developments
through participation in webcast seminars, reliable internet sources from the CEO as well as reputable
research houses’ reports necessary for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively
and diligently.
Furthermore, the Directors have been briefed by the Company Secretary on the amendments to the
listing requirements, Companies Act as well as Malaysia Code on Corporate Governance.
Apart from the updates on the industry trend and statutory requirements, all Executive Directors also
being updated with the latest strategy setting method via in-house briefings conducted from time to
time by the Chief Executive Officer.
1.8 Directors’ Remuneration
In order to enhance the stakeholders’ value not only on the short-term but more importantly on the
long-term basis, the Directors’ remuneration policy is structured along that line.
To ensure that all Executive Directors’ remuneration packages are reflective of their skills, experiences
and contributions to the Group, their remuneration packages were reviewed and recommended to
the Board by the Remuneration Committee. Furthermore, certain proportion of the remunerations
of the Executive Directors is linked to a set of key performance indexes recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.
Remuneration package of Non-Executive Directors will be decided by the Board as a whole and
reflects the experience and level of responsibilities undertaken by the Non-Executive Directors
concerned.
The fees payable to the Directors will be recommended by the board for approval by shareholders at
the AGM.
Categories of Remuneration
		

Executive Directors
RM ‘000

Non-Executive Directors
RM ‘000

Director Fees 1
Salary, Bonus, Incentive and Allowance
Meeting Allowance
Employee Provident Fund
Benefit-in-kind

NIL
470.7
NIL
81.9
26.7

120.0
NIL
8.1
NIL
NIL

Total		

579.3

128.1
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1. Board of Directors (cont’d)
1.8 Directors’ Remuneration (cont’d)
Remuneration Band
		
Less than RM 50,000
RM 50,000 to RM 99,999
RM 100,000 and more
Total
		

1

Executive Director
No. of Directors

Non-Executive Director
No. of Directors

NIL
1
2

2
1
NIL

3

3

To be approved by shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

2. Board Committees
The Board has established a number of Board Committees and delegated to them, specific duties. In
discharging such responsibilities, these committees work within the remit defined by the terms of reference
which state clearly the extent and limits of their responsibilities and authority. Even with the delegation
of its duties by the Board to the Board Committees, the Board’s duties and responsibilities owed to the
stakeholders of the Company remained unchanged.
2.1 Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee (“NC”) was established primarily for the nomination of the directors and
assessment on the overall effectiveness of the Board as well as individual director’s appraisal. The
NC comprises of three (3) members and the quorum for the NC meeting is two-third (2/3) of the
Committee members. It comprises of only Non-Executive Directors of which a majority of them are
independent:
No.		

Name

Designation

1		
2		
3		

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (Chairman)
Vincent Loh
Wang Choon Seang

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

Terms of reference of NC are as follows:
1. Annually review the Board’s required mix of skills, experience, quality and core competencies
which Non-Executive Directors should bring to the Board.
2. Annually assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Committees of the Board and the
contribution of each individual Director.
3. Recommend to the Board, candidates for all directorships to be filled by the shareholders or the
Board.
4. Consider candidates for directorships proposed by the Chief Executive Officer and, within the
bounds of practicability, by any other senior executive or any Director or shareholder.
5. Recommend to the Board, Directors to fill the seats on Board committees.
6. Consider and recommend suitable persons for appointment as Board members of subsidiary and
associate companies as Group nominees and to annually review their contribution.
7. Consider and recommend any measures to upgrade the effectiveness of Directors of the Group
and its subsidiary and associate companies.
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)
2. Board Committees (cont’d)
2.1 Nomination Committee (cont’d)
8. To ensure that all Directors and senior management receive appropriate continuous training in
order to keep abreast with the industry and with changes in the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and to be equipped with the knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the
Board.
9. Plan for succession to the position of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer as well
as certain other senior management positions in the Group. The Chief Executive Officer annually
provides the Committee with an assessment of senior managers and their potential.
10. Establish management development programme for the Company.
11. Carry out such other assignments as may be delegated by the Board.
The NC has no delegated powers to implement its recommendations and should always report its
recommendations back to the Board for its consideration and approval.
The NC shall meet at least once a year. Additional meetings can be arranged as and when required.
The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the NC.
During the year, the NC held one (1) meeting to consider relevant training for Directors, consider
resignation and re-election of Directors and to review overall effective of the Board and
recommendation for the improvements.
2.2 Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) is assigned with the duty to assist the Board in the review of
remuneration policy for the Board and recommendation thereof. Remuneration packages of NonExecutive Directors and Non-Executive Chairman should be a matter for the Board as a whole.
The RC consists of three (3) members and the quorum for the Committee meeting is two-third (2/3) of
the Committee members. It comprises of a majority of Non-Executive Directors:
No.

Name

Designation

1
2
3

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (Chairman)
Vincent Loh
Choy Ngee Hoe

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director

Terms of reference of RC are as follows:
1. Review and recommend the general remuneration policy of the Group.
2. Review and recommend annually the compensation of directors.
a) Recommend to the Board the remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors
in all its forms, drawing from outside advice as necessary.
b) Remuneration package of Non-Executive Director and Non-Executive Chairman should be a
matter for the Board as a whole. The individuals concerned should abstain from discussion of
their own remuneration.
3. Review the performance of Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors within the Group.
4. Recommend the appointment and promotion of top executives within the Group, determine their
salaries and recommend salary revisions and improvements are considered necessary together
with fringe benefits, pre-requisites and bonus programmes.
5. Recommend suitable incentive plans for Executive Directors and Chief Executive Officer based
on key performance indicators to be developed by the Company.
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2. Board Committees (cont’d)
2.2 Remuneration Committee (cont’d)
Based on the Terms of Reference, The RC shall meet at least once a year. Additional meetings can
be arranged as and when required. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the RC.
The RC had held one (1) meeting during the year to recommend remuneration packages of the
Directors to the Board for approval, to review and recommend the remuneration packages of
Chief Executive Officer for Board’s approval and to review the profit sharing scheme established for
the Executive Directors and key management staffs and to recommend the same for the Board’s
approval.

2.3 Audit Committee
Audit Committee was formed to assist the Board primarily in the review of the quarterly financial
statements and audited financial statements, to oversee the conduct of the external audit, risk
management practice and internal controls function within the Group. The composition, terms of
reference and summary of activities of the Audit Committee can be found in the Audit Committee
Report on page xx.
2.4 Employee’s Share Option Scheme (“ESOS”) Committee
The administration of the Company’s ESOS was assigned by the Board to the ESOS Committee. The
ESOS Committee consists of only Directors of which majority of them are in executive capacity:

		

No. Name

Designation

1
2
3

Independent Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director
Chief Technical Officer, Executive Director

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin (Chairman)
Choy Ngee Hoe
Lee Chong Leng

The ESOS Committee has the power to administer the Company’s ESOS scheme in accordance
with the ESOS By-Law as approved by the relevant authorities and for such purposes as the ESOS
Committee deems fit.

3. Shareholders’ Communications and Investor Relations
With the flush of investment alternatives available and more educated investors nowadays, the roles
of investor relations within the Company are becoming more important as compared previously. The
need for the shareholders of the Company to be updated of all material business affairs concerning the
Company has became a basis elements of investor relations’ efforts. The Company held its Sixth Annual
General Meeting on 21 April 2011 where active two-ways communication between the shareholders and
the Company was observed. Questions raised by the shareholders were satisfactorily answered by the
Company and all resolutions were passed by the shareholders during the meeting. During the same day,
a separate session with the members of the press and research houses were conducted to brief on the
past performances as well as future plans.
On quarterly basis, the release of quarterly interim financial results on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s
website provides relevant valuable updates on the Company’s performance to the shareholders
and investors. On annual basis, annual audited financial statements which provide historical financial
information verified by the external auditor and followed by annual report which contains, among others,
the review of past performance, future prospects and other key non-financial information was distributed
to the shareholders and investment communities. From time to time, the Company also announced
major corporate development within the Group through announcement via Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad’s Listing Information Network (“LINK”) to ensure thorough dissemination of important valuable
information throughout the whole market.
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Corporate Governance Statement (cont’d)
3. Shareholders’ Communications and Investor Relations (cont’d)
Other non-statutory disclosure such as new product launching will be made on a timely basis to keep the
shareholders and investors well informed via announcements, press release and research reports.
Internally, the website of the Group has been upgraded to consolidate all newspaper cuttings, research
reports and announcements to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad into a section dedicated for the Investor
Relations. (Website address: http://visdynamics.com).
4. Accountability and Audit
4.1 Financial Reporting
It is the Board’s responsibility to present a balance and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance and position in the timely manner to the shareholders via quarterly results announcement
and annual audited financial statements. The Audit Committee assists the Board by reviewing and
ensuring completeness, accuracy, adequacy and timeliness of all information to be disclosed.
4.2 Internal Controls
To safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, the Board is responsible to ensure
that the Group’s systems on internal control are functioning adequately and effectively. The Audit
Committee is assigned by the Board with the duty to review the adequacy and effectiveness of control
procedures and report to the Board on all findings for deliberation. The internal audit functions are
outsourced to independent professional firm to provide an independent review and to recommend
to the Audit Committee on areas for improvements.
The Statement of Internal Control on page x of this Annual Report provides an overview of the state
of internal controls within the Group.
4.3 Relationship with auditors
The external audit function acts as an independent reviewer for the financial statements to form
an opinion as to the true and fair view of the financial statements prepared by the Company.
External auditors report to members of the Company on their findings which are included as part of
the Company’s financial reports with respect to each year’s audit in the statutory statements. The
external auditors attended Audit Committee meetings during the year with the main aim of ensuring
proper presentation of interim financial statements, to provide professional opinion on the proper
accounting treatments of the underlying transactions, to provide advise on the adoption of Financial
Reporting Standards in the Group’s context, and to highlight to the Audit Committee and the Board
on matters that required their attention.
The Board via the Audit Committee, maintains a formal and transparent professional relationship with
the Group’s auditors, both internal and external.
The roles of the Audit Committee are set out on page x of this Annual Report.
4.4 Relationship with Management
In order to perform their duties effectively and diligently, the Board was updated by the Management
with the latest developments in the industry as well as business operation, both internally and
externally, not limited to the Board’s meeting via management reports as well as through exchange
of phone calls and text messages. The Board believes that it should maintain a close and professional
relationship with the key management staff of the Group.
In order to advance the interests of the Group, Executive Directors consistently carry out their duties
and responsibilities through strategic planning sessions and management meetings scheduled at
regular intervals with the key management staff to chart the Group’s future direction and plan the
Group’s ground operations.
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4. Accountability and Audit (cont’d)
4.5 Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors are required by the Companies Act, 1965 to prepare financial statements for each
financial year which have been made out in accordance with the applicable approved accounting
standards and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at the
end of the financial year and of the results and cash flows of the Group and the Company for the
financial year.
The Directors are satisfied that in preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 October 2011, the Group had followed the appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently. The Directors are also of the view that relevant approved
accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of these financial statements.
ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
To comply with the Bursa Securities ACE Market Listing Requirements, the following additional information is
provided:
(i) Utilisation of Proceeds
There were no proceeds raised from any corporate proposals during the financial year.
(ii) Share Buy-Backs
During the financial year, the Company had not implemented any buyback scheme.
(iii) Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities
During the financial year, the Company had issued 50,347,650 free warrants (Warrants on the basis of
one (1) warrant for every two (2) ordinary shares of RM0.10 each)
(iv) Depository Receipt Programme
During the financial year, the Company did not sponsor such programme.
(v) Sanctions and/or Penalties
There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company or its subsidiaries, Directors or
Management by the relevant regulatory bodies since the last Annual Report.
(vi) Non-Audit Fees
The non-audit fees of RM15,370 for the financial year, which was related to corporate tax compliance
services and other advisory services rendered to the Company and its subsidiaries by the Company’s
auditors.
(vii)Variation in Results
There were no profit estimates, forecasts or projections or unaudited results released which differ by
10 per cent or more from the audited results.
(viii)Profit Guarantee
There were no profit guarantees given in respect of the Company and its subsidiaries during the
financial year.
(ix) Material Contracts or Loans involving Directors or Major Shareholders
There were no material contracts or loans between the Company and its subsidiaries that involve
directors’ or major shareholders’ interests.
(x) Recurrent Related Party Transaction of Revenue or Trading Nature
Details of significant transaction with related parties of a current nature undertaken by the Company
and its subsidiaries during the year is disclosed in Note 35 of the financial statements.
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Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad was established by the Board of Directors before
its initial public offering and the eventual listing of its securities on the MESDAQ market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (now known as ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad) on 13 April 2006. The main
objective of the establishment of the Audit Committee (“Committee”) is to provide independent monitoring
and review of the Group’s corporate governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal controls.
1. Members and Attendance of the Committee
The Audit Committee held five (5) meetings during the financial year ended 31 October 2011. The details
of the attendance of the Committee are as follows:
														
														
No. Composition of Committee
Designation			
1.
2.
3.

Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaludin
(Chairman)
Vincent Loh
Wang Choon Seang

No. of
Meetings
attended

%

Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5

100 %

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

5/5
5/5

100 %
100%

The meetings were conducted with the quorum of two (2) Committee members and the majority of
Committee members presented at the meeting were independent directors.
The Finance and Administrative Manager, Senior Accounts Executive and a representative of its external
auditors attended all the above five (5) meetings to assist the Committee in carrying out its duties.
In addition, the Committee had meetings with the external and internal auditors where they are given
the opportunity to raise any concern or professional opinion and thus to be able to exert its functions
independently.
The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee and is responsible, together with the Chairman,
to draft the agenda and circulating it prior to each meeting. The Secretary is also responsible for keeping
the minutes of meetings of the Committee and circulating them to the Committee Members before the
Committee’s meeting. It is the Secretary’s practice to circulate the agenda of the Committee’s meeting
and the minutes of the previous Committee’s meeting at least seven (7) days before the date of the
Committee’s meeting to allow ample time for Committee’s member to go through. The Committee
Members may inspect the minutes of the Committee at the Registered Office or such other place as may
be determined by the Committee.
2. Summary of Activities of the Committee During the Year
During the financial year ended 31 October 2011, the Committee has carried out the following activities
in order to discharge its duties assigned by the Board of Directors:
2.1 Review of the interim financial statements prepared by the Company for quarterly announcement
and to recommend the same to the Board of Directors for approval for issuance. In order to ensure
the reviews were carried out and recommendations were made satisfactory and diligently, the
Committee has, among others,:
2.1.1.
		
2.1.2.
		
		
2.1.3.
		
		
2.1.4.
		
2.1.5.
			
2.1.6.
			

received draft quarterly announcements and accompanying notes seven (7) days before
the Committee’s meeting from the management;
obtained overall understanding of the performances of and future prospects of the Group
by way of management briefings and engagement of constructive discussion with the
management;
obtained confirmation from the external auditor and management on the compliance of
applicable Financial Reporting Standards, including the presentation of the condensed
financial statements and the accompanying notes;
monitored the account receivables and obtained satisfactory explanations from the
management on the long overdue accounts;
received updates on the cash flow position and availability of financing facilities and utilization
of the such financing facilities; and
obtained assurance from the management on the compliance with statutory requirements
and regulations.
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2.2. Reviewed the scope and timing of statutory audit by external audit before the commencement of
statutory audit via audit planning memorandum prepared and briefed by the external auditor. The
Committee recommended the audit planning memorandum to Board of Directors for approval after
constructive discussion with the external auditor;
2.3. Reviewed the Audit Completion Memorandum prepared by the external auditor detailing the analysis
of the components of income statements and balance sheet, significant audit issues, compliance with
Financial Reporting Standards, access to accounting records and cooperation from the Company in
the conduct of the audit. The Committee recommended to the Board of Directors for approval after
obtaining satisfactory explanations and briefings from the external auditor and the management.
2.4. Reviewed related party transactions, if any, entered into by the Company and its subsidiary and there
was no related party transaction made during the financial year ended 31 October 2011.
2.5. Maintained and ensure compliance of the Enterprise Risk Management Report from an independent
professional firm detailing risk management and responsibility structure, residual risk profiles ranked
as extreme, high, medium and low, risk management policy to be adopted by the Group as well as
internal audit strategy to be practiced by the Group.
2.6. Reviewed the Internal Audit Reports which were tabled during the year, the audit recommendations
made and Management’s response to these recommendations. Where appropriate, the Committee
had directed Management to rectify and improve control and workflow procedures based on
internal auditors’ recommendations and suggestions for improvement and, consequently, monitored
the corrective actions on the outstanding audit issues to ensure that all the key risks and control lapses
have been addressed.
2.7. Recommended to the Board of Directors, with the consultation of the management, for the
reappointment of external auditor after they have expressed their willingness to continue as external
auditor for the Company.
3. Statement on Employees’ Share Option (“ESOS”) Scheme by the Committee
There was no allocation of options under the ESOS Scheme during the financial year ended 31 October
2011.
4. Internal Audit Functions and Activities
The internal audit functions within the Group have been outsourced to an independent professional
firm with expertises in enterprise risk management, corporate governance as well as internal audit. In
order to act independently of the management, the independent professional firm reports directly to the
Committee and assists the Board in monitoring the risks and reviewing internal controls system to ensure
sound internal system are established and continues to function effectively and satisfactorily within the
Group, after taking into consideration of the practicability of such control mechanisms.
In the course of conducting the internal audit plan during the financial year, the independent
professional firm had carried out one (1) round of internal audit review and one (1) round of Enterprise
Risk Management concentrating on the strategic management, supply chain management, purchasing
and logistic management, product quality, stock management, financial management internal control
management, HR management, regulatory management, safety and health management and general
controls. Details of the internal audits carried out during the financial year ended 31 October 2011 may
be found in Statement of Internal Control in page [ ].
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5. Terms of Reference
5.1.Composition
1. Members of the Audit Committee shall be from amongst its directors which fulfills the following
requirements:
(a) the Audit Committee must be composed of no fewer than three (3) members;
(b) all the Audit Committee members must be non-executive directors, with a majority of
them being independent directors; and
(c) at least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:
(i) must be at member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or
(ii) if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least three
(3) years’ working experience and:
		
(aa) he must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the
			
Accountants Act 1967; or
		
(bb) he must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II
			
of the 1st Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or
(iii) fulfills such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad.
2. No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
3. The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a chairman from among their number who shall
be an independent director.
4. In the event of any vacancy in the Audit Committee resulting in the non-compliance of the Listing
Requirements, the vacancy must be filled within three (3) months.
5. The term of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members shall be
reviewed by the Board at least once every three (3) years.
5.2.Rights
The Committee is accorded with the following rights in the performance of its duties and responsibilities:
5.2.1. have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;
5.2.2. have the resources which are required to perform its duties;
5.2.3. have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Group;
5.2.4. have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the
internal audit function or activity;
5.2.5. have the right to obtain independent professional or other advice at the Company’s expense;
5.2.6. have the right to convene meetings with the internal auditors and external auditors, excluding the
attendance of other directors or employees of the Group, whenever deemed necessary;
5.2.7. promptly report to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), or such other name(s)
as may be adopted by Bursa Securities, matters which have not been satisfactorily resolved by
the Board of Directors resulting in a breach of the Listing Requirements;
5.2.8. have the right to pass resolutions by a simple majority vote from the Committee and that the
Chairman shall have the casting vote should a tie arise;
5.2.9. meet as and when required on a reasonable notice; and
5.2.10. the Chairman shall call for a meeting upon the request of the External Auditors.
5.3.Duties
During the financial year, the Committee carried out its duties in accordance with its terms of reference:
5.3.1. to review with the external auditors on:
5.3.1.1. the audit plan, its scope and nature;
5.3.1.2. the audit report;
5.3.1.3. the results of their evaluation of the accounting policies and systems of internal accounting
		
controls within the Group; and
5.3.1.4. the assistance given by the officers of the Company to external auditors, including any
		
difficulties or disputes with Management encountered during the audit;
5.3.2. To review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources and set the standards
		 of the internal audit function;
5.3.3. to provide assurance to the Board of Directors on the effectiveness of the system of internal control
		 and risk management practices of the Group;
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5.3.4. to review the internal audit programme, processes the results of the internal audit programme,
		 processes or investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the
		 recommendations of the internal audit function.
5.3.5. To review with management:
5.3.5.1. audit reports and management letter issued by the external auditors and the implementation
		
of audit recommendations;
5.3.5.2. interim financial information; and
5.3.5.3. the assistance given by the officers of the Company to external auditors;
5.3.6. To monitor related party transactions entered into by the Company or the Group and to determine
if such transactions are undertaken on an arm’s length basis and normal commercial terms and
on terms not more favourable to the related parties than those generally available to the public,
and to ensure that the Directors report such transactions annually to shareholders via the annual
report, and to review conflicts of interest that may arise within the Company or the Group including
any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity.
5.3.7. To review the quarterly reports on consolidated results and annual financial statements prior to
		 submission to the Board of Directors; focusing particularly on:
5.3.7.1. changes in or implementation of major accounting policy and practices;
5.3.7.2. significant and / or unusual matters arising from the audit;
5.3.7.3. the going concern assumption;
5.3.7.4. compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements; and
5.3.7.5. major areas.
5.3.8. to consider the appointment and / or re-appointment of auditors, the audit fee and any questions
		 of resignation or dismissal including recommending the nomination of person or persons as
		 auditors; and
5.3.9. to verify any allocation of options in accordance with the employees share scheme of the
		 Company, at the end of the financial year.
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Statement of Internal Control
Based on the listing requirements of the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, listed companies are
required to establish an internal audit function within the Company independent of Management. Internal
auditors must report to the Audit Committee directly. This is to ensure that all practical control mechanisms are
present to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. Furthermore, listed companies
are required to publish a statement on the state of internal control in its annual report.
Responsibility
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group system
of internal controls. The Board believes that it’s commitment to uphold the spirit of the internal control as
compared to the mere compliance with the listing requirements will cultivate the positive culture within the
Group to prevent total corporate failure.
The Board acknowledges that limitations exist in any system of internal control and the internal control system
is designed to mitigate the risks of failure in achieving its business objectives and hence, can only manage to
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes enhancing the system of internal controls when there are
changes to business environment or regulatory guidelines. The process is reviewed by the Board and accords
with the guidelines for directors on internal control, the Statement of Internal Control: Guidance for Directors
of Public Listed Companies.
Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Board’s policies and procedures on risk and
control by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable
internal controls to mitigate and control these risks.
The Board is of the view that the system of internal controls in place for the financial year under review and
up to the date of issuance of the financial statements is sound and sufficient to safeguard the shareholders’
investment, the interests of customers, regulators and employees, and the Group’s assets.
The Control Structure and Environment
The Group’s internal control mechanism covers not only day-to-day operations but also on the governance
of the Group at the highest level through the Board and various Board Committees. While the Board and
its committees are governed by their respective terms of reference established and are reviewed on an
annual basis, Management’s conduct is monitored and reviewed through operational performance
reviews on quarterly basis, risk position reviewed periodically and independent internal audit conducted by
independent professional firm. The internal control processes are reviewed and updated from time to time
to ensure that they are relevant and effective when responding to changes in circumstances and external
environment and also for further improvement by adopting the best practices, where practical.
The Control Mechanism
The key elements of the Group’s control mechanism is described as follows:
•

A structured assessment on the board effectiveness and individual director’s performance evaluation
has been established for the Board of Directors for evaluation on an annual basis. An assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board of Directors as a whole was conducted by Nomination Committee. The
assessment covered value-adding propositions, compliance, stakeholders’ relationship and performance
management and several areas have been identified for further improvement which was briefed to the
Board of Directors.

•

The internal audit function is outsourced to an independent professional firm. The internal audit function
reports directly to the Audit Committee. The scope of work under the engagement covered business
processes review and independent review of internal control systems that existed within the Group
to assess its adequacy and integrity. Subsequent to the internal audit exercises, the professional firm
recommended to Management on the areas for further improvement and sought Management’s actions
in response to the findings. The professional firm then highlighted to the Audit Committee significant areas
for improvement and Management’s response as well as updates on the progress of the improvement
of internal controls within the Group. A large majority of the recommendations of the professional firm for
further improvement were implemented as at the date of this report.
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The Control Mechanism (cont’d)
During financial year ended 31 October 2011, the independent professional firm has conducted one (1)
round of internal control review concentrating on strategic management, stock management, purchasing
and logistic management, product quality, supply chain management and research and development.
During the course of carrying out their review, the professional firm was given full cooperation and unrestricted
access to all information necessary to carry out their review.
The fee paid to the professional firm in respect of internal audit function for the financial year ended 31
October 2011 was RM 28,627.
•

Enterprise Risk Management Framework of the Group was established with the assistance of an
independent professional firm appointed by Audit Committee. With the establishment of the risk profiles
from the exercise, the Management managed the risks faced by the Group periodically evaluating
existing significant risks and identifying new risk, if any, that might arise through brain-storming sessions
among members of the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”). Risk owners were identified for all
significant risks for the purpose of the identification and implementation of the mitigation plan. During
the financial year, one (1) round of Enhancement of Enterprise Risk Management Framework: Follow-up
on Implementation of Risk Action Plans were presented to the Board of Directors.

•

For the monitoring of the day-to-day operations, the Group implemented management reporting
mechanism whereby the Group monitors its financial performance by comparing its monthly financial
results against performance in the previous month and previous corresponding period where material
variances are identified, studied and subject to further improvement on a regular interval. A set of
operational and financial performance indexes was developed to act as a monitoring tool as well as to
provide a basis for setting up a realistic yardstick for further improvement. The management reporting
system is also able to provide a mean for the identification of irregularity from both operational and
financial perspective which required the immediate attention of the Management.

The Board was also being briefed by the Management on the performance of the Group on quarterly
basis by way of Review of Performance Report prepared by the Management. During the presentation
of the performance review by the Management, members of the Board of Directors were provided with
unrestricted flow of information for their high level review of the performance of the Group and all top
management staffs of the Group were available to answer any question posed by the Board for such review.
In order to manage its operation effectively and efficiently, regular operation meetings among the key
operational management staff were held focusing on the allocation of responsibility and the monitoring of
all key operational issues and projects.
•

Management conducts monthly meetings during the financial year ended 31 October 2011 concentrating
on the Company’s goals and performance. There were brainstorming sessions to address each goals
and strategies which were assigned to a member of the Management to ensure its implementation is
executed as planned.

•

In terms of reporting and responsibility structure within the Group, the Group has established a formal lean
organizational structure with clearly defined role and line of responsibility, authority and accountability
whereby no one person in the Group is able to abuse his/her position for his/her own benefit to the
detriment of the Group. Authority limit are established within the Group to provide a clear functional
framework of authority in approving operational and capital expenditure.

Conclusion
Overall, the Board is satisfied that the process of identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks that
may affect achievement of the Group’s business objectives is in place to provide reasonable assurance to
that end. It is the Group’s positive attitude towards striving to become better that drives its desire to make
sure the system of internal control will be enhanced on a regular basis as the Group progress to the next
level of development. The Board and Management also seek regular assurance on the effectiveness and
soundness of the internal control system through reviews conducted by the internal auditors.
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Directors’ Report
The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 October 2011.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principal engaged in business of investment holding and provision of management services.
The principal activity of the subsidiary is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements. There has been no
significant change in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.
RESULTS
									
									

Group
RM

Company
RM

2,029,305

(438,961)

			

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders			
						

			

DIVIDEND
There was a final dividend of 0.5 sen per share tax exempt for the year ended 31st October 2010 being paid
on 16 May 2011. The directors do not recommend a final dividend in respect of the current financial year.
ISSUE OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES
During the financial year,
(a) the Company issued the following ordinary shares:
Date of issue
24th August 2011
11th May 2011
18th July 2011

No of shares
33,565,100
29,600
13,000

Term of Issue
Cash at par
Cash at par
Cash at par

Purpose
Bonus issue
Exercise of ESOS
Exercise of ESOS

(b) there were no issues of debentures by the Company.
OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued
shares in the Company.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”)
On, 14 January 2005, the Company’s ESOS of up to 10% of the issued and paid–up share capital of the
Company, which is governed by the by-laws, was approved by the shareholders during an extraordinary
general meeting and shall be in force for a period of 10 years.
The movements in the share options during the financial year are as follows:			
			
Balance
Date of
Exercise
offer
period
			
14.1.2005
14.1.2005
14.1.2005

13.4.2006
13.4.2007
13.4.2008

Exercise					
Price per
Balance
During the year
ordinary
At				
share
1.11.2010
Granted
Exercised
Lapsed
RM					
0.10
0.10
0.10

2,300
5,300
35,000

								

				

42,600

At
31.10.2011

-

(2,300)
(5,300)
(35,000)

-

-

-

(42,600)

-

-

Option exercisable in a particular year but not exercised can be carried forward to the subsequent years
provided they are exercised prior to the expiry date of the ESOS on 13 April 2015.
Eligible employees who were granted options under the ESOS are as follows:No. Name of Option Holders			

Number of Share Option

		

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

ABD GAPAR BIN OMAR				
ABU BAKAR BIN OMAR				
LIM KENG HOW					
TAI LIN LIN						
TOH WEI JIENG					
YONG KIN MING					

12,000
1,000
3,100
12,000
7,500
7,000

The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:(a) any employee (including any persons who have entered into any service contract with the Group) and
directors of the Group are eligible to participate in the scheme, if, as at the offer date, such employee
or director has attained the age of 18 years and must have been confirmed for regular employment in
the case of an employee;
(b) the maximum number of new ordinary shares of the Company which may be available under the scheme
shall not exceed in aggregate ten percent (10%) of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company at any one time at the point of granting of the Option(s) during the existence of the Scheme;
(c) the subscription price for the new ordinary shares will be the higher of the following:(i) the weighted average market price of the shares for the five (5) Market Days immediately preceding
the Offer Date, with a discount of not more than ten percent (10%) at the Option Committee’s
discretion; or
(ii) the par value of the shares.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
The salient features of the ESOS are as follows (cont’d)(d) the scheme will lapse:(i)

when the eligible employee ceases to be employed by the Group;

(ii)		 at the end of ten years from the date the scheme was approved by the shareholders and directors
in a general meeting;
(iii) in the event of death, insanity or bankruptcy of the eligible employee;
(iv) in the event of any misconduct by the eligible employee;
(v) in the event of any breach of the By-Laws or the ESOS’s terms by the eligible employee;
(vi) on winding up or liquidation of the Company or the Group; and
(vii) on termination of the ESOS.
(e) the shares to be allotted upon any exercise of any option will upon issue and allotment,
rank
pari
passu in all respect with the existing issued ordinary shares, except that the shares will not to be entitled
to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distribution declared prior to the exercise of the options.
BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took
reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the
making of allowance for doubtful debts, and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts and
that no allowance for doubtful debts is required.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the writing off
of bad debts, or the making of allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company.
CURRENT ASSETS
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took
reasonable steps to ascertain that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised in
the ordinary course of business, including their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and
of the Company, had been written down to an amount that they might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would render the values
attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.
VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which have arisen which render
adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company
misleading or inappropriate.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Other than the contingent liabilities as disclosed in Note 36 to the financial statements, at the date of this
report, there does not exist:
(i) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial
year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or
(ii) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year.
No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to
become enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the
opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet
its obligations when they fall due.
CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this
report or in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company that would render any amount stated
in the financial statements misleading.
ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE
The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the
opinion of the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature.
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any
item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year.
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:Choy Ngee Hoe
Lee Chong Leng
Ong Hui Peng (f)
Datuk Azzat bin Kamaludin
Vincent Loh
Wang Choon Seang
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
There were no material movements to or from reserves and provisions during the year under review.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
DIRECTORS’ INTEREST
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interest of directors holding office at the end of the
financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year are as follows:							
							
							
							

Number of Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 Each
Balance			
Balance
at			
at
1.11.2010
Bonus Issue
Sold
31.10.2011

Direct interest:
			
Choy Ngee Hoe		
20,351,300
Datuk Azzat bin Kamaludin
100,000
Lee Chong Leng		
3,036,100
Ong Hui Peng (f)		
3,036,100

10,175,650
50,000
1,518,050
1,518,050

-

30,526,950
150,000
4,554,150
4,554,150

By virtue of his interest in shares in the company, Choy Ngee Hoe is deemed to have interest in shares of the
subsidiary to the extent of the Company’s interests, in accordance with Section 6A of the Companies Act
1965 in Malaysia.
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any
benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and
receivable by directors as shown in the financial statements, or the fixed salary of a full time employee of
the Company) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director
or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial
financial interest.
Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose
object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs Wong Weng Foo & Co., have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated:

CHOY NGEE HOE
Director

LEE CHONG LENG
Director

MELAKA
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Directors’ Statement
We, the undersigned, being two directors of the Company, do hereby state that in the opinion of the
directors, the financial statements set out on pages 34 to 70 are drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1965 and Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31st October, 2011 and of their results and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution the directors dated:

CHOY NGEE HOE
Director

LEE CHONG LENG
Director

Statutory Declaration
I, PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of VISDYNAMICS
HOLDINGS BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 34 to
70 are, in my opinion, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared )
by Peggy Chek Hong Kim at Melaka )
in the state of Melaka		
)
on							
)
								
Before me:					
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PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM

Independent Auditors’ Report
To The Members Of Visdynamics Holdings Berhad

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statement of the Company, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31st October 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Group and
of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, as set out on pages 34 to 70.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia,
and for such internal control as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31st October 2011 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:
(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by
the Company and its subsidiary have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
(b) We are satisfied that the accounts of the subsidiary that have been consolidated with the Company’s
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations
required by us for those purposes.
(c) Our audit reports on the accounts of the subsidiary did not contain any qualification or any adverse
comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of
the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any
other person for the content of this report.
WONG WENG FOO & CO				
ABD HALIM BIN HUSIN
Firm No: AF 0829
			 Approval No: 2095/12/12(J)
Chartered Accountants
			
Partner of the Firm
Kuala Lumpur,
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Statement Of Financial Position
As At 31St October 2011

		
						Group		Company
								
Restated		
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
Note
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets						
Investment in a subsidiary		
6
2,999,980
Property, plant and equipment
7
5,850,248
6,481,614
Prepaid land lease payments
8
Intangible assets			
9
1,923,685
1,757,947
Deferred tax asset		
10
83,000
83,000
-

4,999,980
-

								
7,856,933
8,322,561
Current Assets						
Inventories				
11
5,759,918
7,485,134
Trade receivables		
12
2,404,801
8,815,246
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments			
13
141,942
129,589
Amount owing by a subsidiary
14
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
15
5,613,319
1,330,000
Cash and bank balances		
16
938,126
960,807

2,999,980

4,999,980

-

-

33,220
4,091,131
5,613,319
101,844

23,029
7,335,093
1,330,000
51,438

								
						
Total Assets 				

14,858,106

18,720,776

9,839,514

8,739,560

22,715,039

27,043,337

12,839,494

13,739,540

						

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
					
						
Equity 					
Share capital				
17
10,069,530
6,708,760
10,069,530
Share premium			
18
2,823,202
8,168,901
2,823,202
Share option reserve		
19
66,400
Warrant reserves				
2,013,906
2,013,906
Retained profits/(Accumulated losses)		
4,195,926
2,502,059
(2,346,817)

6,708,760
8,168,901
66,400
(1,572,418)

Total Equity

13,371,643

				

19,102,564

17,446,120

12,559,821

						

Non-Current Liabilities						
Long term borrowings		
20
498,716
846,237
							
Current Liabilities						
Trade payables			
23
591,945
3,605,031
Other payables and accruals
24
1,692,781
2,722,009
279,673
Short term borrowings		
25
829,033
2,423,940
-

367,897
-

								

3,113,759

8,750,980

279,673

367,897

Total Liabilities		

3,612,475

9,597,217

279,673

367,897

22,715,039

27,043,337

12,839,494

13,739,540

		

						

Total Equity and Liabilities 		
						

Net Asset Per Share (Cents)

26

0.19

0.26		

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement Of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31St October 2011

		
						Group		Company
										
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
Note
RM
RM
RM
RM
							

REVENUE					
27
COST OF SALES 				

15,652,697
(8,697,236)

19,683,070
(10,206,704)

360,000
-

360,000
-

GROSS PROFIT 				
OTHER OPERATING INCOME		

6,955,461
67,953

9,476,366
148,683

360,000
61,097

360,000
24,857

								

7,023,414

9,625,049

421,097

384,857

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES		

(1,332,153)

(2,827,334)

-

-

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES		

(2,719,342)

(2,234,316)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES		

(729,454)

(1,198,660)

-

-

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES		

(74,794)

(972,543)

-

-

(138,366)

(142,568)

FINANCE COSTS 		

28

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

28

2,029,305

TAX EXPENSE		

31

-

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR		

2,029,305

		

2,249,628

(859,189)

(869)

(845)

(438,961)

(411,632)

(28,805)
2,220,823

(795,644)

-

-

(438,961)

(411,632)

(438,961)

(411,632)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 					
EQUITY HOLDERS 			

2,029,305

2,220,823

PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE (SEN)					
-BASIC 					
32
2.02
3.31
-DILUTED 				
32
2.02
3.31
-

-

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
Annual Report 2011

35

Statement Of Changes In Equity
For The Year Ended 31St October 2011

Group						
NON-DISTRIBUTABLE		
DISTRIBUTABLE
									
Share
							
Share
Share
option
Warrant Retained
							
capital premium
reserve reserves
profits
							
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
							

At 1st November 2009		
Profit attributable to
equity holders			

At 31st October 2010/
1st November 2010		
Profit attributable to
equity holders			
Exercise of ESOS			
Dividend paid
during the year			
Employees’ Share
Option Scheme Cost		
Issuance of Bonus Issue		
Issuance of warrant		
At 31st October 2011 		

6,708,760 8,168,901
-

66,400

-

281,236 15,225,297

-

-

- 2,220,823 2,220,823

6,708,760 8,168,901

66,400

- 2,502,059 17,446,120

4,260

26,400

-

- 2,029,305 2,029,305
30,660

-

-

-

-

(100)
3,356,510 (3,357,382)
- (2,014,617)
10,069,530 2,823,202

(335,438)

(66,400)
- 2,013,906

-

(335,438)
(66,500)
(872)
(711)

- 2,013,906 4,195,926 19,102,564

Company					
NON-DISTRIBUTABLE		
DISTRIBUTABLE
									
Share
							
Share
Share
option
Warrant Retained
							
capital premium
reserve reserves
profits
							
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
							

At 1st November 2009		
Loss for the financial year		

At 31st October 2010/1st
November 2010			
Loss for the financial year		
Exercise of ESOS			
Dividend paid
during the year			
Employees’
Share Option
Scheme Cost			
Issuance of Bonus Issue		
Issuance of warrant 		
At 31st October 2011

Total
RM

6,708,760 8,168,901
-

66,400
-

- (1,160,786) 13,783,275
- (411,632) (411,632)

6,708,760 8,168,901
4,260
26,400

66,400
-

- (1,572,418) 13,371,643
- (438,961) (438,961)
30,660

-

-

(100)
3,356,510 (3,357,382)
- (2,014,617)
10,069,530 2,823,202

-

-

(335,438)

(66,400)
- 2,013,906

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad (677095-M)

-

(335,438)
(66,500)
(872)
(711)

- 2,013,906 (2,346,817) 12,559,821

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement Of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended 31St October 2011

		
						Group		Company
								
Restated		
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
							

Cash Flow From/(For) Operating Activities						
		
				 				
Profit/(Loss) before taxation		
2,029,305
2,249,628
(438,961)
(411,632)
Adjustments for:							
Allowance for doubtful debts		
310,750
Amortisation of development expenditure 		
22,117
40,116
Amortisation of patents and trademarks		
6,331
6,752
Employees’ share option scheme cost
overprovided
			
(40,100)
(40,100)
Issuance of bonus issue and warrants cost
overprovided				
(1,583)
(1,583)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 				
688,802
792,482
Loss on plant and equipment written off 		
43
210,060
Development expenditure transferred to		
income statement			
447,985
Transfer of plant and equipment to inventories
125,487
Interest expense			
119,976
124,245
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of plant and
equipment					
718
(38,258)
Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange unrealised				
(35,284)
196,118
(Reversal)/Addition of provisions		
(251,497)
1,707,076
Interest income			
(66,179)
(25,127)
(61,097)
(24,857)
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital
changes					
2,472,469
6,147,314
(541,741)
Changes in working capital:					
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories		
1,725,216
(2,353,399)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other
receivables					
6,473,132
(7,182,419)
(10,191)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other
payables 				
(3,775,390)
2,462,365
(88,224)
Cash From/(For) Operations		
Interest paid					
Tax paid					

6,895,607
(119,976)
-

Net Cash From/(For)Operating Activities
Carried Forward 			

6,775,631

(436,489)
5,165
149,566

(926,139)
(124,245)
(28,805)

(640,156)
-

(281,758)
-

(1,079,189)

(640,156)

(281,758)

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement Of Cash Flows (cont’d)
For The Year Ended 31St October 2011

		
						Group		Company
								
Restated		
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
Note
RM
RM
RM
RM
							

Net Cash From/(For) Operating
Activities Brought Forward		
6,775,631
(1,079,189)
(640,156)
								
Cash Flows From/(For) Investing Activities					
Interest received			
66,179
25,127
61,097
Payments for development expenditure 		
(194,186)
(198,179)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and
equipment 					
2,000
452,488
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment 				
33
(60,197)
(653,497)
Dividend paid				
(335,438)
(335,438)
Discount received			
67,050
Net Cash (For)/From Investing Activities		

(521,642)

(307,011)

(274,341)

(281,758)
24,857
24,857

								

Cash Flow From /(For) Financing Activities						
		
Proceeds from issuance of shares
under ESOS					
4,260
4,260
Dividend received			
2,000,000
Drawdown of banker acceptances		
4,546,722
4,531,000
Net advance to a subsidiary 		
3,243,962
254,439
Repayment of hire purchase obligations		
(46,421)
(45,217)
Repayment of term loan			
(302,729)
(334,541)
Repayment of banker acceptances		
(6,140,000)
(2,500,000)
Net Cash (For)/From Financing Activities		

(1,938,168)

1,651,242

5,248,222

254,439

								

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And
Cash Equivalents			
4,315,821
265,042
4,333,725
(2,462)
								
Effect Of Foreign Exchange Rates
Changes 					
(55,183)
(87,562)
								
Cash And Cash Equivalents At						
		
Beginning Of The Financial Year		
2,290,807
2,113,327
1,381,438
1,383,900
End Of The Financial Year

34

6,551,445

2,290,807

5,715,163

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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1,381,438

Notes To The Financial Statements
31ST OCTOBER 2011

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is a public company limited by shares and is incorporated under the Companies Act
1965 in Malaysia. The domicile of the Company is Malaysia. The registered office and principal place of
business are as follows:Registered office
: 10th floor, Menara Hap Seng
						No 1& 3 Jalan P. Ramlee
						50250 Kuala Lumpur
Principal place of business : Lot 3844, Jalan TU 52
						Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama
						Ayer Keroh,75450 Melaka
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a
resolution dated 20 February 2012.
2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The Company is principally engaged in business of investment holding and provision of management
services. The principal activity of the subsidiary is set out in Note 6 to the financial statements. There has
been no significant change in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES
The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are
available for the development of the Group’s business whilst managing its market, credit, liquidity and
cash flow risks. The policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:(a) Market Risk
(i) Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in
currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia.
The Group manages its foreign exchange exposure by a policy of matching as far as possible
receipts and payments in each individual currency.
Foreign exchange exposure is monitored closely and kept to an acceptable level.
(ii) Interest Rate Risk
The Group obtains financing through bank borrowings and hire purchase arrangements. The
Group’s policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rate available.
Information relating to the Group’s interest rate exposure is disclosed in the notes on borrowings,
including hire purchase payables.
(iii) Price Risk
The Group does not have any quoted investments and hence is not exposed to price risk.

The attached notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (cont’d)
(b) Credit Risk
Credits risks, or the risk of counter parties defaulting, are controlled by the application of credit
approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Credit risks are minimised by monitoring receivables
regularly and by mostly trading with reputable and credit worthy customers.
The carrying amount of trade receivables and other receivables represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets. No other financial assets carry a significant
exposure to credit risk.
The Group does not have any major concentration of credit risk related to any individual customer
or counter party.
(c) Liquidity And Cash Flow Risks
The Group manages its debt profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as to
ensure that all refinancing, repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall prudent
liquidity management, the Group maintains sufficient level of cash or cash convertible investments
and the continuing financial support from its bankers to meet its working capital requirements.
4. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are prepared under the historical cost
convention and in compliance with Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) and the Companies Act
1965 in Malaysia.
The directors of the Group have chosen not to early adopt the following FRS, amendments and
interpretations which were in issue but not yet effective:							
							
							

Effective for financial
period beginning on or
after

Amendments to FRS 1
- Limited Exemption from
						 Comparative FRS 7 Disclosure for
						 First Time Adopters
					
- Additional Exemption for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 2
Group Cash-settled Share-based
					
Payment Transaction
FRS 3				
Annual improvements to FRSs
Amendments to FRS 7
- Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
Amendments to IC
Interpretation 13
Customer Loyalty Programmes
Amendments to IC
Interpretation 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IC Interpretation 15
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
IC Interpretation 18
Transfer of Assets from Customers
IC Interpretation 19
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

1.1.2011

1.1.2011
1.1.2011
1.1.2011
1.1.2011
1.7.2011
1.1.2012
1.1.2011
1.7.2011

These new and revised FRS’s and interpretations are not expected to have any significant impact on the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that effect the
application of the 		Group and of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures, and have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses are discussed below:(i) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the property,
plant and equipments are based on commercial and production factors which could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor’s actions in response to the market
conditions.
The Group anticipates that the residual values of its property, plant and equipments will be
insignificant. As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation
for the depreciable amount.
Changes in the expected level of usage and commercial factors could impact the economic
useful lives and the residual value of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be
revised.
(ii) Income Taxes
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be
different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding of
the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of
business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made.
(iii) Impairment of Assets
When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-inuse of he cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the Group is required to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a
suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows.
(iv) Allowance for Doubtful Debts of Receivables
The Group make allowance for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of
receivables. Allowance are applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Management specifically analyses
historical bad debt, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends
and changes in customer payment terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy
of the allowance for doubtful debts of receivables. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of receivables.
(v) Amortisation of Development Cost
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the
economic useful lives therefore future amortisation charges could be revised.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
(a) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (cont’d)
(vi) Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities (cont’d)
The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which require extensive
use of accounting estimates and judgements. While significant components of fair value
measurement were determine using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in
fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation methodologies. Any changes in fair
value of these assets and liabilities would effect profit and equity.
(b) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has become a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument
classified as a liability, are reported as an expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial
instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity.
Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet are disclosed in the individual policy
statement associated with each item.
(c) Functional and Foreign Currency
		

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency
The functional currency of the Company and each of the Group’s entity is measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company or that entity operates.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) which is also the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
(ii) Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currency are converted into RM at the approximate rates of exchange
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are
translated at the rates ruling as of that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated
using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. All exchange differences
are taken to the income statement.

(d) Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary made up to 31 October 2011.
A subsidiary is defined as a company in which the parent company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to exercise control over its financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
(d) Basis of Consolidation (cont’d)
All subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method. Under the purchase method, the result
of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed off are included from the date of acquisition or up to the
date of disposal. At the end of acquisition, the fair value of the subsidiaries’ net assets are determined
and these values are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for the control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of accounting policies with
those of the Group.
(e) Goodwill on Consolidation
Goodwill on consolidation represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over
the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of
acquisition.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The carrying value of
goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or whenever there are circumstances which indicate
the carrying value may be impaired. The impairment value of goodwill is recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the
subsidiaries exceeds the cost of the business combinations, the excess is recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement.
(f) Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the balance sheet of the Company, and are
reviewed for impairment at the end of the financial year if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying values may not be recoverable.
On the disposal of the investment in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the investments is taken to the income statement.
(g) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any.
Depreciation is calculated under the straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of
the assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset
becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are:Building						
Plant and machinery				
Furniture, fitting and electrical installation				
Motor vehicle					
Computer equipment				
Renovation					
		

2%-4%
10%-20%
10%-33.33%
20%
20%-33.33%
2%-4%

Annual Report 2011

43

Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
(g) Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)
The depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date to ensure the amount, method and period of depreciation are
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the items of the property,plant and equipment.
Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for
commercial use at the balance sheet date. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and will
be transferred to the relevant category of long term assets and depreciated accordingly when the
assets are completed and ready for commercial use.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset is included
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.
(h) Impairment of Assets
The carrying values of assets, other than financial assets, inventories, goodwill on consolidation
and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment when there is
an indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying
values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
net selling price and its value in use which is measured by reference to discounted future cash flow.
An impairment loss is charged to the income statement immediately unless the asset is carried at
revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to
the extent of any unutilised previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.
In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change is the estimates used to
determined the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset
is treated as reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying
amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised in the income statement immediately,
unless the asset is carried at its revalued amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited directly to the
revaluation
surplus. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously
recognised as an expense in the income statement, a reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
as income in the income statement.
(i) Prepaid Land Lease Payments
The prepaid land lease payments comprise the up-front payments made for the leasehold interest in
land and are amortised on a straight line basis over the lease terms.
(j) Assets Under Hire Purchase
Plant and equipment acquired under hire purchase are capitalised in the financial statements and
are depreciated in accordance with the policy set out in the Note 5(g) above. Each hire purchase
payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. Finance charges are allocated to the income statement over the
period of the respective hire purchase agreements.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
(k) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
standard cost basis, which approximates the actual costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of
materials, labour and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
(l) Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. Bad debts are written off in the period in
which they are identified. An estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding
amounts at the balance sheet date.
(m) Research and Development Expenditure
		

		

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
Development expenditure is recognised as an expense except that expenditure incurred on
development projects are capitalised as long-term assets to the extent that such expenditure is
expected to generate future economic benefits. Development expenditure is capitalised if, and only
if an entity can demonstrate all of the followings:(i) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the asset under development;
(ii) the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;
(iii) its future economic benefits are probable
(iv) its ability to use or sell the developed asset; and
(v) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the asset
under development.
Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. Development expenditure initially recognised as an expenses are not
recognised as assets in the subsequent period.
The development expenditure is amortised on a straight - line method over a period of not exceeding
5 years when the products are ready for sale or use. In the event that the expected future economic
benefits are no longer probable of being recovered, the development expenditure is written down
to its recoverable amount.

(n) Patents and Trademarks
Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding 10 years.
(o) Payables
Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for
goods and services received.		
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
(p) Incomes Taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current and deferred tax.
Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the
period and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise
from goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination cost or from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time
of the transaction, effects neither accounting profit nor taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from a transaction which
is recognised directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also charged or credited directly in
equity, or when it arises from a business combination that is an acquisition, in which case the deferred
tax is included in the resulting goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination cost.
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
(q) Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings
Interest-bearing bank borrowings are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction
cost.
All borrowing costs are charged to the income statement as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.
(r) Equity Instruments
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax from proceeds.
Dividend on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
(s) Segmental Information
Segment revenues and expenses are those directly attributable to the segments and include any joint
revenue and expenses where a reasonable basis of allocation exists. Segment assets include all assets
used by a segment and consist principally of property, plant and equipment (net of accumulated
depreciation, where applicable), inventories, receivables, and cash and bank balances.
Most segment assets can be directly attributed to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment
assets and liabilities do not include income tax assets and liabilities respectively.
Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments. The prices charged on
inter-segment transactions are based on normal commercial terms. These transfers are eliminated
on consolidation.
(t) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, deposits
pledged with financial institutions, bank overdrafts and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
(u) Employee Benefits
(i) Short Term Benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, bonuses and non monetary benefits are accrued in the period
in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group.
(ii) Defined Contribution Plans

		

The Group’s contribution to defined contribution plans are charged to the income statement
in the period to which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no
further liability in respect of the defined contribution plans.
(iii) Shared-based Payment transactions
At grant date, the fair value of option granted to employees is recognised as an employee
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that are expected to vest.

(v) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events, when
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliableestimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where effect of the time
value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the estimated expenditure required
to settle the obligation.
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)
(w) Related Parties
A party is related to an entity if:(i) directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:•
•
•

controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);
has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; or
has joint control over the entity;

(ii) the party is an associate of the entity;
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the entity is venturer,
(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent;
(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i)or (iv);
(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to
in (iv) or (v); or
(vii)the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of 			
the entity, or of any entity that is related party of the entity.
Close members of the family of an individual are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
(x) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group and the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.
A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly
within the control of the Group and the Company.
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31ST OCTOBER 2011

(y) Revenue Recognition
(i) Sales of Goods
Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance and where applicable,
net of returns and trade discounts.
(ii) Interest Income
		

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis, based on the effective yield on the investment.
(iii) Management Fees
Management fees from subsidiaries are accounted for on accrual basis.

6. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY
		
								Company
								
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
						

Unquoted shares, at cost			
Less:						
Dividend from pre-acquisition reserve			

						

								

4,999,980

4,999,980

(2,000,000)
2,999,980

4,999,980

Details of the subsidiary, which is incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:						
						
Effective Equity			
Name of Company		
Interest
Principal Activity
						
2011
2010
		
Visdynamics Research Sdn. Bhd.
100%
100%
Manufacturer of automated test equipment
				
The financial statements of the subsidiary is audited by Wong Weng Foo & Co.
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2,530,574

1,255,132

909,374

55,313

137,243

864,520

31,192

4,533

5,850,248

931,420

341,113

NET BOOK VALUE		

691,215

2,870,715

733,267

59,975

At 31st October 2011		

176,092

2,231,012
688,802
(1,082)
(48,017)

8,712,626
60,197
(3,800)
(48,060)

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION								
								
At 1st November 2010
49,070
119,879
503,794
500,227
261,828
795,017
1,197
Charge for the year		
10,905
56,213
229,780
191,310
79,285
117,973
3,336
Disposal				
(322)
(760)
Written off				
(307)
(47,710)
-

1,001,763

1,016,599
29,038
35,224
6,687
(2,350)
(47,710)		

8,720,963

396,426

396,426
-

RM

Total

35,725

1,988,399

1,600,589

2,706,666

At 31st October 2011		

991,395

1,592,879
9,160
(1,450)
-

COST 							
At 1st November 2010
991,395
2,706,666
1,979,623
Additions				
9,126
Disposals				
Written off				
(350)

Group
31.10.2011				
Leasehold
Building
Plant &
Furniture,
Motor Computer Renovation
						
land		 machinery
Fitting &
vehicles equipment		
									
Electrical 				
									 installation				
						
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

2,586,787

1,475,829

1,092,652

500,227

134,598

261,828

221,582

795,017

27,841

1,197

6,481,614

942,325

503,794

NET BOOK VALUE		

8,876,591
843,187
(67,050)
(724,981)
(215,121)

2,231,012

119,879

1,016,599

29,038
-

49,070

396,426

941,254
75,345
-

At 31st October 2010		

1,592,879

396,426
-

1,628,856
792,482
(100,692)
(89,634)

1,979,623

1,589,595
3,284
-

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION								
								
At 1st November 2009		
38,165
62,351
369,170
305,123
182,543
671,504
Charge for the year		
10,905
57,528
324,950
195,104
79,285
123,513
1,197
Disposals				
(100,692)
Written off				
(89,634)
-

2,706,666

2,184,205
735,520
(724,981)
(215,121)

8,712,626

991,395

At 31st October 2010		

2,773,716
(67,050)
-

RM

Total

29,038

991,395
-

COST 		
At 1st November 2009		
Additions				
Discount				
Disposals				
Written off				

Group
31.10.2010				
Leasehold
Building
Plant &
Furniture,
Motor Computer Renovation
						
land		 machinery
Fitting &
vehicles equipment		
									
Electrical 				
									 installation				
						
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM
RM

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d))

Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d))
Included in property, plant and equipment is building with a carrying value of RM2,530,574 (2010:
RM2,586,787) which have been pledged to a financial institution as security for banking facilities granted
to the Group.
The motor vehicle of the Group acquired under hire purchase terms was carried at net book value of
RM55,313 (2010: RM134,598) at the balance sheet date.
8.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
Restated

								
								
								

2011
RM

At Cost					
At 1st November				
Effect of adopting the amendments to FRS 117
			

-

991,395
(991,395)

At 31st October				

-

-

					
Accumulated Amortisation				
At 1st November				
Effect of adopting the amendments to FRS 117 			
-

49,070
(49,070)

At 31st October				

2010
RM

-

-

Net Book Value					
At 1st November				
Effect of adopting the amendments to FRS 117 			
-

942,325
(942,325)

					

At 31st October				

-

-

The leasehold land above has been charged to a financial institution for banking facilities granted
to the Group.

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
						
Goodwill Development
							 expenditure
						
RM
RM
Cost:-				
Balance at 1st November 2009
Additions during the financial year
Transfer to income statement
Transfer to plant and equipment
Balance at 31st October 2010/
1st November 2010		
Additions during the financial year
Balance at 31st October 2011
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Patents and
trademarks
RM

TOTAL
RM

1,576,446
-

1,191,742
198,179
(447,985)
(189,691)

42,435
31,498
-

2,810,623
229,677
(447,985)
(189,691)

1,576,446
-

752,245
194,186

73,933
-

2,402,624
194,186

1,576,446

946,431

73,933

2,596,810

Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)
						
Goodwill Development
							 expenditure
						
RM
RM

Patents and
trademarks
RM

TOTAL
RM

Accumulated amortisation:-				
				
Balance at 1st November 2009
589,921
7,888
Amortisation during the financial year
40,116
6,752

597,809
46,868

				

Balance at 31st October 2010/
1st November 2010		
				
Amortisation during the financial year

-

630,037

14,640

644,677

-

22,117

6,331

28,448

-

652,154

20,971

673,125

Net book value:-				
				
Balance at 31st October 2011
1,576,446
294,277

52,962

1,923,685

59,293

1,757,947

				

Balance at 31st October 2011

				

				

Balance at 31st October 2010

1,576,446

122,208

(i) Development expenditure
The amount transferred to income statement of RM Nil (2010: RM447,985) is in respect of prototype
units sold during the previous financial year.
(ii) Goodwill
		

Key assumptions used is value-in-use calculations
The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on value-in-use
calculations using cash flow projections based on financial budget approved by management
covering a five-year period. The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are based on past
experience and the discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 5.90% (2010: 4.62%)

10. DEFERRED TAX ASSET
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
			

Balance at 31st October			

83,000

2010
RM
83,000
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10. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (cont’d)
Deferred tax asset arises as a result of:-			
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
Tax incentive 					

83,000

2010
RM
83,000

			

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
RM
RM
RM
RM
Unused tax losses		
Tax incentive			
Other temporary differences

1,639,000
1,420,000
(891,000)

1,748,000
1,113,000
(465,000)

940,000
-

874,000
-

						

2,168,000

2,396,000

940,000

874,000

							

11. INVENTORIES
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM

2010
RM

At cost:-			
Raw materials					
Work-in-progress				
Finished goods				

2,390,043
3,091,328
278,547

4,862,227
549,118
2,073,789

								

5,759,918

7,485,134

None of the inventories is carried at net realisable value.
12. TRADE RECEIVABLES
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM

2010
RM

Trade receivables				
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts			

2,715,551
(310,750)

9,125,996
(310,750)

								

2,404,801

8,815,246

The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 days. Other credit terms are assessed and
approved on a case-by-case basis.
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12. TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont’d)
The foreign currency exposure profile of trade receivables is as follows:		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
US Dollar						

827,400

2010
RM

2,812,637

13. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
RM
RM
RM
RM
Other receivables		
Deposits				
Prepayments			

29,066
16,860
96,016

20,756
15,860
92,973

10,107
1,000
22,113

1,000
22,029

						

141,942

129,589

33,220

23,029

14. AMOUNT OWING BY A SUBSIDIARY
		
								Company
								
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
Non trade balances				

4,091,131

7,335,093

The amount owing is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
15. FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS
The weighted average effective interest rates of deposits at the balance sheet date were as follows:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
					
%
%
%
%
							

Licensed banks		

3.07

2.41

3.07

2.41

The average maturities of deposits at the balance sheet date were as follows:
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
						
Days
Days
Days
Days
							

Licensed banks		

30

30

30
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16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
The foreign currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances is as follows:		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
US Dollar						

154,800

2010
RM
267,306

17. SHARE CAPITAL
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
NUMBER OF SHARES		
RM
RM
ORDINARY SHARES OF RM0.10 EACH:-				
							
AUTHORISED		
				
Balance at 31st October
250,000,000
250,000,000
25,000,000

25,000,000

							

ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP				
At 1st November		
67,087,600
67,087,600
6,708,760
ESOS					
42,600
4,260
Bonus issue			
33,565,100
3,356,510
Balance at 31st October

100,695,300

67,087,600

10,069,530

6,708,760
6,708,760

On 14 January 2005, the Company’s ESOS of up to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the
Company, which is governed by the by-laws, was approved by the shareholders during an extraordinary
general meeting and shall be in force for a period of 10 years.
The salient features of the ESOS are as follows:(a) any employee (including any persons who have entered into any service contract with the
Group are eligible to participate in the scheme, if as at the offer date, such employee or director
has attained the age of 18 years and must have been confirmed for regular employment in the case
of an employee;
(b) the maximum number of new ordinary shares of the Company which may be available under the
scheme shall not exceed in aggregate ten percent (10%) of the total issued and paid-up share capital
of the Company at any one time at the point of granting of the Option(s) during the existence of the
Scheme;
(c) the subscription price for the new ordinary shares will be the higher of the following:(i) the weighted average market price of the shares for the five (5) Market Days immediately
preceding the Offer Date, with a discount of not more than ten percent (10%) at the Option
Committee’s discretion; or
(ii) the par value of the shares.
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d))
(d) the scheme will lapse:(i) when the eligible employee ceases to be employed by the Group;
(ii) at the end of ten years from the date the scheme was approved by the shareholders and directors
		 in a general meeting;
(iii) in the event of death, insanity or bankruptcy of the eligible employee;
(iv) in the event of any misconduct by the eligible employee;
(v) in the event of any breach of the By-Laws or the ESOS’s terms by the eligible employee;
(vi) on winding up or liquidation of the Company or Group; and
(vii)on termination of the ESOS.
(viii) the shares to be allotted upon any exercise of any option will upon issue and allotment, rank pari
passu in all respect with the existing issued ordinary shares, except that the shares will not to be
entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distribution declared prior to the exercise
of the options.
The movements in the share option during the financial year are as follows:			
			
Date of
Exercise
Offer
period
			
14.1.2005
14.1.2005
14.1.2005

13.4.2006
13.4.2007
13.4.2008

Exercise					
Price per
Balance		During the year		 Balance
Ordinary
At				
At
Share
1.11.2010
Granted Exercised
Lapsed 31.10.2011
RM				
0.10
0.10
0.10

							

				

2,300
5,300
35,000

-

(2,300)
(5,300)
(35,000)

-

-

42,600

-

(42,600)

-

-

Option exercisable in a particular year, but not exercised can be carried forward to the subsequent years
provided they exercised prior to the expiry date of the ESOS on 13 April 2015.
18. SHARE PREMIUM
		
								Group/Company
								
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
At end of the financial year			

2,823,202

8,168,901
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18. SHARE PREMIUM (cont’d)
Share premium arose from the issues of ordinary shares in excess of the par value, as follows:
Date

Descriptions				

RM

13.4.2006
		
3.5.2007
		
20.6.2007
		
26.5.2008
		
11.5.2011
		
18.7.2011
		

Public issues of 16,700,000 ordinary shares at an issue price 			
of RM0.66
Issues of 83,500 ordinary shares at an issue price of RM 0.64 			
for the exercise of ESOS
Issues of 62,300 ordinary shares at an issue price of RM 0.64 			
for the exercise of ESOS
Issues of 90,000 ordinary shares at an issue price of RM 0.67 			
for the exercise of ESOS
Issues of 29,600 ordinary shares at an issue price of RM 0.74 			
for the exercise of ESOS
Issues of 13,000 ordinary shares at an issue price of RM 0.68 			
for the exercise of ESOS

9,352,000
45,500
33,800
50,000
18,900
7,500

19. SHARE OPTIONS RESERVE
		
								Group/Company
								
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
Balance at 1st November 			
Exercise during the year			
								

66,400
(66,400)
-

66,400
66,400

The share options reserve represents the equity-settled shares option granted to employees. This reserve is
made up of the cumulative value of services received from the employees recorded on grant of share
options.
20. LONG TERM BORROWINGS
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
Term loans (Note 21)				
Hire purchase payable (Note 22)			
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2010
RM

395,185
103,531

697,914
148,323

498,716

846,237

Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
31ST OCTOBER 2011

21. TERM LOANS
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
Current portion: (Note 25)			
- repayable within one year			
			
Non-current portion: (Note 20)			
- repayable between one and two years			
								

2010
RM

343,572

343,572

395,185

697,914

738,757

1,041,486

The term loans are repayable by 60 (2010: 60) equal monthly instalments of RM28,631 (2010: RM28,631)
per month with effect from August 2008. The term loans bore an effective interest rate of 4.86% (2010:
5.55%) per annum at the balance sheet date.
The term loans are secured as follows:(i) by a corporate guarantee from the Company; and
(ii) by way of a fixed charge over the leasehold land together with a factory erected thereon as disclosed
in Note 7 and Note 8 to the financial statements.
22. HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLE
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM

2010
RM

Minimum hire purchase payments:-			
- not later than one year			
- later than one year but not later than five years			

51,060
106,343

51,060
157,403

								
Less: Future finance charges			

157,403
(6,133)

208,463
(10,772)

Present value of hire purchase payable			

151,270

197,691

47,739

49,368

103,531

148,323

151,270

197,691

Present value of hire purchase payables:Current portion: (Note 25)			
Not later than one year			
			
Not-current portion: (Note 20)			
Later than one year but not later than five years			
			

								

The hire purchase payable is subject to effective interest at the rate of 2.65% (2010: 2.65%) per annum at
the balance date. The interest rate is fixed at the inception of the hire-purchase arrangements.
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23. TRADE PAYABLES
The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group ranges from 30 to 120 days.
The foreign currency exposure profile of trade payables is as follows:		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
Singapore Dollar				

17,434

2010
RM
463,887

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
RM
RM
RM
RM
Other payables		
Accruals				
Provisions 				
							

						

94,630
587,184
1,010,967

120,457
1,339,088
1,262,464

23,466
41,928
214,279

25,272
49,130
293,495

1,692,781

2,722,009

279,673

367,897

Incentive
RM

Warranties
RM

Others
RM

Total
RM

The analysis of the provisions is as follows:
Group					
						
					

At 1st November 2010		
Additions				
Utilisations				
Reversals of unused provisions
At 31st October 2011		

Bonus
RM
159,636
262,132
(172,289)

384,809
499,690
(571,262)

585,020
444,739
(79,049)
(622,459)

133,000
152,000
(165,000)

1,262,465
1,358,561
(79,049)
(1,531,010)

249,479

313,237

328,251

120,000

1,010,967

					

The foreign currency exposure profile of other payables and accruals is as follows:-

		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
US Dollar

					

585,510

2010
RM

1,638,667

			

25. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
Terms loans (Note 21)				
Hire purchase payable (Note 22)			
Bankers acceptances				
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2010
RM

343,572
47,739
437,722

343,572
49,368
2,031,000

829,033

2,423,940

Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
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25. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (cont’d)
The bankers acceptances are secured as follows:(i) by a corporate guarantee from the Company; and
(ii) by way of a fixed charge over the leasehold land together with a factory erected thereon as disclosed
in Note 7 and Note 8 to the financial statements.
26. NET ASSET PER SHARE
The net assets per share of the Group is calculated based on the net assets value of RM19,102,564 (2010:
RM17,446,120) attributable to ordinary shares divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the
balance sheet date of 100,695,300 (2010: 67,087,600) shares of RM0.10 each.
27. REVENUE
Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold and services rendered less trade discounts and
returns.
The significant categories of revenue recognised during the year are as follows:
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
RM
RM
RM
RM
Sales of goods		
Rendering of services		
							

						

15,652,697
-

19,683,070
-

360,000

360,000

15,652,697

19,683,070

360,000

360,000

28. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Profit/(Loss) before taxation
is arrived at after						
charging/(crediting):-					
				
									
Allowance for doubtful debts
310,750
Amortisation of development
expenditure			
22,117
40,116
Amortisation of patents and
trademarks
5,269
6,752
Auditors’ remuneration:				
- Statutory audit		
23,320
22,000
11,660
11,000
- Other services		
15,370
15,370
Depreciation of plant and
equipments			
688,802
792,482
-
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28. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (cont’d)
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
							
Note
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Finance cost:						
Bank charges 		
18,390
18,323
869
Bankers acceptances interest
74,494
68,553
Hire purchase interest
4,639
5,843
Term loan interest		
40,843
49,849
-

845
-

						

845

138,366

142,568

869

Loss on plant and equipment
written off				
43
210,060
Employee share option
scheme cost overprovided		
(40,100)
(40,100)
Issuance of bonus issue &
warrants cost overprovided		
(1,583)
(1,583)
(Gain)/Loss on foreign
exchange:							
- realised					
75,175
(21,981)
- unrealised				
(35,284)
196,118
Interest expense			
119,976
124,245
Addition/(Reversal) of provisions		
(251,497)
1,707,076
Employee benefits
30
1,961,091
1,711,985
85,865
Write off of development
expenditure				
28,494
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of plant
and equipment 			
718
(38,258)
Interest income			
(66,179)
(25,127)
(61,097)

104,315
(24,857)

29. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by directors of the Group and of the
Company during the financial year are follows:The breakdown of directors’ remuneration:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Non-executive directors				
- Fees					
87,500
66,000
87,500
							
Executive directors					
- Salaries				
352,112
314,111
229,152
- Bonus				
(26,173)
27,478
(16,682)
- Employee Provident Fund
34,761
64,652
22,177
- Other emoluments		
98,724
189,934
56,979
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66,000
200,217
17,646
41,331
117,744

459,424

596,175

291,626

376,938

546,924

662,175

379,126

442,938

Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
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29. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (cont’d)
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Benefit-in-kind						
- Non-executive directors
8,100
8,542
8,100
- Executive directors
28,800
23,177
14,400

7,642
11,177

						

18,819

36,900

31,719

22,500

The breakdown of the categories charged out to:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Charged to income statement
Capitalised to development
expenditure			
Capitalised to capital work-inprogress				
Capitalised to finished good

							

						

485,491

608,577

379,126

442,938

3,655

2,368

-

-

44,772
13,006

44,744
6,486

-

-

546,924

662,175

379,126

442,938

The details of emoluments for the directors of the Group and of the Company received and receivable
for the financial year by category and in bands of RM50,000 are as follows:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
						

Non- executive directors 				
Below RM50,000		
2
3
2
RM50,001-RM100,000		
1
1
							
Executive directors					
RM50,001-RM100,000		
2
2
RM100,001-RM150,000
2
RM150,001-RM200,000
1
1
RM200,001-RM250,000
1
1
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The breakdown of the staff costs:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Salaries and wages		
Bonus 					
Employees Provident Fund
Social Security Contribution
Other staff related expenses

1,932,379
249,882
234,014
26,027
301,682

1,667,594
119,294
207,853
22,149
319,779

67,200
(5,570)
7,403
620
16,212

66,800
5,628
10,930
620
20,337

						

2,743,984

2,336,669

85,865

104,315

							

The breakdown of the categories charged out to:-			
			
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Charged to income statement
Capitalised to development expenditure
Capitalised to capital work-in-progress
Capitalised to finished goods

1,961,091
92,683
628,164
62,046

1,711,985
30,293
534,974
59,417

85,865
-

104,315
-

						

2,743,984

2,336,669

85,865

104,315

31. TAX EXPENSE
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Current tax expense : - 					
Malaysian Income Tax for the financial year
Other tax expense		
(5,605)
Under provision in prior year
34,410
-

							

Total tax expense		

64

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad (677095-M)

-

28,805

-
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31. TAX EXPENSE (cont’d)
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit/(loss) before taxation at the statutory tax
rates to income tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Profit /(Loss) before taxation

2,029,305

2,249,628

(438,961)

(411,632)

Tax at the applicable corporate tax rates of 25%
507,000
562,000
(110,000)
							
Tax effects of:-					
Non-deductible expenses
363,000
398,000
72,000
Deferred tax asset not recognised
89,000
Reversal of deferred tax asset
not recognised		
(122,000)
(655,000)
Other tax expense		
(5,605)
Tax exempt income		
(786,000)
(394,000)
Tax losses				
38,000
38,000
Under provision of tax in prior year
34,410
-

(103,000)

							

							

Tax expense for the financial year

-

28,805

14,000
89,000
-

-

-

The subsidiary has been granted pioneer status under the Promotion of Investment Act, 1986. Accordingly,
100% of the subsidiary’s statutory income from pioneer activities is exempted from income tax for a
period of five years, commencing 1 June 2003 and has been extended for another five years commencing
1 June 2008.
32. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(i) Basic profit/(loss) per share
The basic profit/(loss) per share for the financial year is arrived at by dividing the Group’s profit/
(loss) attributable to equity holders of RM2,029,305 (2010: RM2,220,823) by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in issue during the financial year of 100,695,300 (2010:
67,087,600).
(ii) Diluted profit per share
The diluted profit per share for the financial year is arrived at by dividing the Group’s profit attributable
to equity holders of RM2,029,305 (2010: RM2,220,823) by the weighted average number of dilutive
potential ordinary shares of RM0.10 each in issue during the financial year of 100,695,300 (2010:
67,130,200).
33. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM

2010
RM

Cost of property, plant and equipment purchased			
Amount financed through hire purchase 			

60,197
-

653,497
-

Cash disbursed for purchase of plant and equipment 			

60,197

653,497
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34. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalents comprised the followings:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

5,613,319
938,126

1,330,000
960,807

5,613,319
101,844

1,330,000
51,438

						

6,551,445

2,290,807

5,715,163

1,381,438

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(i) The Company has the following transaction with related parties during the financial year:		
		
								Group
								
2011
								
RM
Subsidiary 			
Management fee received/receivable			

360,000

2010
RM
360,000

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members key management personnel during the year were
as follows:		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Short term employee benefits
Employees Provident Fund

								

					

1,219,108
87,432

1,283,559
128,103

426,243
29,580

489,295
52,261

1,306,540

1,411,662

455,823

541,556

								

Included in the compensation of key management personnel are:								
		
						Group		Company
							
2011
2010
2011
2010
								
RM
RM
RM
RM
						

Directors’ remuneration (Note 29)

546,924

662,175

379,126

442,938

Executive directors of the Group and the Company and other members of key management have
not been granted options under the ESOS.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
		
								Company
									
2011
2010
										
RM
RM
						

Guarantee given to a financial institution for banking			
facilities granted to a subsidiary			

5,561,000

6,361,000

			

37. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
		
								Group
									
2011
										
RM

2010
RM

						

Sales revenue by geographical market:-			
Malaysia						
South East Asia				
North Asia					
United State of America			

1,308,388
1,776,417
12,241,370
326,522

2,072,493
628,922
12,920,181
4,061,474

								

15,652,697

19,683,070

Group 			
						
2011					

Elimination
RM

Total
RM

Manufacturing
RM

Others
RM

Revenue:				
External revenue
Inter segment revenue

15,652,697
-

360,000

(360,000)

15,652,697
-

						

15,652,697

360,000

(360,000)

15,652,697

				

Results:				
Segment results		
Finance cost			
Other operating income

2,598,907
(137,497)
6,856

(499,189)
(869)
61,097

-

2,099,718
(138,366)
67,953

Profit before income tax
Income tax			

2,468,266
-

(438,961)
-

-

2,029,305
-

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
company			

2,468,266

(438,961)

-

2,029,305

Other information:				
				
* Segment assets		
15,390,210
12,839,494

(5,514,665)

22,715,039

^ Segment liabilities		

7,412,933

279,673

(4,080,131)

3,612,475

Capital expenditure		

60,197

-

-

60,197

Depreciation			

677,897

-

-

688,802
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Notes To The Financial Statements (cont’d)
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37. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (cont’d)
Group 			
						
2010					

Manufacturing
RM

Others
RM

Elimination
RM

Total
RM

Revenue:				
External revenue
Inter segment revenue

19,683,070
-

360,000

(360,000)

19,683,070
-

					

19,683,070

360,000

(360,000)

19,683,070

				

Results:				
Segment results
Finance cost
		
Other operating income

2,679,157
(141,723)
123,826

(435,644)
(845)
24,857

-

2,243,513
(142,568)
148,683

Profit before income tax
Income tax
		

2,661,260
(28,805)

(411,632)
-

-

2,249,628
(28,805)

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company

2,632,455

(411,632)

-

2,220,823

Other information:				
				
* Segment assets		
24,062,424
13,739,540

(10,758,627)

27,043,337

(7,335,093)

9,597,217

^ Segment liabilities		

16,564,413

367,897

Capital expenditure		

843,187

-

-

843,187

Depreciation			

792,482

-

-

792,482

* - Segment assets comprise total current and non-current assets.
^ - Segment liabilities comprise total current and long-term liabilities.
The Group operates predominantly in Malaysia and accordingly other information by geographical
location of the Group is not presented.
38. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced
sale or liquidation.
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each item
instruments:-

of

financial

(a) Amount owing by a subsidiary
The Company does not anticipate the carrying amount recorded at the balance sheet date to be
significantly different from the value that would eventually be received or settled.
(b) Cash and bank balances and other short term receivables
The carrying amounts approximated their fair values due to the relatively short term maturity of these
instruments.
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38. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)
(c) Short term bank borrowings and other current liabilities
The carrying amounts approximated their fair values because of the short period to maturity of these
instruments.
(d) Long term bank borrowings
The carrying amount approximated the fair value as this instrument bears 			
interest at variables rates.
(e) Hire purchase obligations
The fair value of hire purchase payables are determined by discounting the relevant cash flows
using current interest rates for similar types of instruments. There is no material difference between
the fair values and the carrying values of these liabilities as at the balance sheet.
(f) Contingent liabilities
The nominal amount and net fair value of financial instruments not recognised in the balance sheets
of the Company are as follows:
						
						
						
						
							

Corporate guarantees

Nominal
Amount
RM

2011		
Net Fair
Value
RM

Nominal
Amount
RM

5,561,000

*

6,361,000

2010

Net Fair
Value
RM
*

							

* - The fair value of contingent liabilities is expected to be minimal as the subsidiary is expected
to be able to repay the banking facilities.

39. COMPARATIVE FIGURE
Arising from the Amendment FRS 117: Leases, during the current financial year, the effect of the
reclassification to the comparative figures have been restated accordingly:							 As previously
							
reported Reclassification
							
RM
RM
At 31st October 2010			
			
Statement of Financial Position
		
			
Property, plant and equipment		
5,539,289
Prepaid land lease payments		
942,325
			
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Cash Flow 		
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment		
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments		

781,577
10,905

As restated
RM

942,325
(942,325)

6,481,614
-

10,905
(10,905)

792,482
-
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40. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – BREAKDOWN OF RETAINED PROFIT INTO REALISED AND UNREALISED
The breakdown of the retained profits/(losses) of the Group and of the Company as at 31st October
2011 into realised and unrealised profits/(losses) is presented in accordance with the directive issued by
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25th March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance
on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants.
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Group 		
2011		
RM		

Company
2011
RM

Total retained profits/(accumulated losses)			
			
Statement of Financial Position			
			
- Realised					
4,239,706 		
- Unrealised 				
46,220		
							
4,285,926		

(2,346,817)
–
(2,346,817)

Less: Consolidation adjustment		

(90,000)		

-

Total retained profits/(accumulated losses)		

4,195,926 		

(2,346,817)

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad (677095-M)

List Of Landed Properties
AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2011

Description						
Location						
									
									
		
Land area 					
Tenure

					

Corporate and manufacturing plant
Lot 3844 Jalan TU 52
Kawasan Perindustrian Tasik Utama
Ayer Keroh, 75450 Melaka
6,690 square metres
Leasehold (99 years) expiring on 29 March 2097

Net book value as at 31/10/2011			

RM3,461,994

Date of acquisition					

20 February 2007
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Analysis Of Shareholdings
Authorised Share Capital 			
:
Issued and fully paid up Capital		
:
Class of shares 				
:
Voting rights 					
:
									
									

RM25,000,000
RM10,069,530.00
Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
Every member of the Company, present in person or by
proxy, shall have on a show of hands, one (1) vote or
on a poll, one (1) vote for each share held.

DISTRIBUTION TABLE A ACCORDING TO THE NUMBER OF SECURITIES
HELD IN RESPECT OF ORDINARY SHARES AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
CATEGORY

NO. OF		
HOLDERS
%

NO. OF
SHARES

%

Less than 100
100 - 1,000
1,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares

7
20
168
316
74
1

1.19
3.41
28.67
53.93
12.63
0.17

351
7,100
1,070,750
12,485,050
56,605,099
30,526,950

0.00
0.01
1.06
12.40
56.21
30.32

TOTAL

586

100.00

100,695,300

100.00

LIST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
NO

NAMES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

NO. OF SHARES

%

1

CHOY NGEE HOE

30,526,950

30.32

TOTAL

30,526,950

30.32

LIST OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
NO

72

NAMES OF DIRECTORS
			

SHAREHOLDINGS

%

1
DATUK AZZAT BIN KAMALUDIN
150,000
			
2
CHOY NGEE HOE
30,526,950
			
3
LEE CHONG LENG
4,554,150
		
4
ONG HUI PENG
4,554,150
Shares held through		
RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd = 4,554,150		
			
5
VINCENT LOH
			
6
WANG CHOON SEANG
-

0.15

VisDynamics Holdings Berhad (677095-M)

30.32
4.52
4.52

-

Analysis Of Shareholdings
(cont’d)

COUNTER : VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD
TOP THIRTY (30) SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
(Without aggregating the securities from different securities account belonging to the same Depositor)
NO NAMES

HOLDINGS NO.

%

CHOY NGEE HOE
30,526,950
TAN KIAN BENG
5,007,300
LEE CHONG LENG
4,554,150
RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
4,554,150
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ONG HUI PENG (N16235U)>		
CH’NG PAED WEE
3,669,750
TEO LEONG KHOON
3,540,300
CHONG CHOY FOONG
3,017,200
SIOW CHWEE PENG
2,951,550
JONG PIT FONG
2,790,300
CHAN HENG SOON
2,775,099
RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
1,733,950
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MOHAMAD AZRIL BIN ABDUL RAZAK (CEB)>		
CHAN HENG SOON
1,575,000
KHAIRIL ANUAR BIN ABDULLAH
1,179,000
TANG PEN SAN
1,167,750
CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
1,050,000
<CIMB BANK FOR PHANG CHET PING (MY0322)>		
AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
1,032,600
<TANG PEN SAN (9984-1101)>		
JONG PIT FONG
1,013,850
TEO LEONG KHOON
938,850
LAI KUM SIM
750,000
MOHD RAZALI BIN ABDUL RAHMAN
750,000
CHONG WEN TAT
683,850
CHONG WEN TAT
579,900
SHZE KENG KOOI
563,500
RICHARD KOH PENG HONG
457,000
LIM MOOI TEAN
421,050
CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
400,000
<CIMB BANK FOR LEE ENG ENG (MY0030)>		
KOH BOON POH
400,000
SEE TIAN CHWAN
400,000
CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
361,900
<CIMB BANK FOR TAN HOCK VENG)>		
WONG TEIK POH
350,000

30.32
4.97
4.52
4.52

			

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
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3.64
3.52
3.00
2.93
2.77
2.76
1.72
1.56
1.17
1.16
1.04
1.03
1.01
0.93
0.74
0.74
0.68
0.58
0.56
0.45
0.42
0.40
0.40
0.40
0.36
0.35
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Analysis Of Warrant Holdings
Types of Securities
:
Date of Expiry		
:
Exercise Right		
:
						
						
Voting Rights		
:

Warrants 2011/2016
1 September 2016
Each Warrant carries the entitlement to subscribe for one (1) new Ordinary Shares of
RM 0.10 each in the Company at an exercise price to be determined by the Board
at a later date after the receipt of all relevant approvals
The holder of Warrants is not entitled to any voting rights

DISTRIBUTION TABLE A ACCORDING TO THE NUMBER OF SECURITIES
HELD IN RESPECT OF ORDINARY SHARES AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
CATEGORY

NO. OF		
HOLDERS
%

NO. OF
SHARES

%

Less than 100
100 - 1,000
1,001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares

27
33
114
132
48
2

7.59
9.27
32.02
37.08
13.48
0.56

1,431
19,518
516,650
5,462,475
26,216,799
18,130,777

0.00
0.04
1.03
10.85
52.07
36.01

TOTAL

356

100.00

50,347,650

100.00

INFORMATION ON SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (EXCLUDING BARE TRUSTEES) AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
NO

NAMES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

NO. OF SHARES

%

1
CHOY NGEE HOE
15,263,477
			
2
ANG YOOK CHU @ ANG YOKE FONG
2,867,300

30.32
5.70

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
NO

74

NAMES OF DIRECTORS
			

SHAREHOLDINGS

%

1
DATUK AZZAT BIN KAMALUDIN
75,000
			
2
CHOY NGEE HOE
15,263,477
			
3
LEE CHONG LENG
2,077,075
		
4
ONG HUI PENG
1,977,075
Shares held through		
RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd = 4,554,150		
			
5
VINCENT LOH
			
6
WANG CHOON SEANG
-

0.15
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30.32
4.13
3.93

-

Analysis Of Warrant Holdings
(cont’d)

COUNTER : VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD-WARRANTS A
TOP THIRTY (30) SECURITIES ACCOUNT HOLDERS AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2012
(Without aggregating the securities from different securities account belonging to the same Depositor)
NO NAMES

HOLDINGS NO.

			
CHOY NGEE HOE
15,263,477
ANG YOOK CHU @ ANG YOKE FONG
2,867,300
EB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD
2,140,000
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LIM WEE ENG (TMH-SFC)>		
4 LEE CHONG LENG
2,077,075
5 RHB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
1,977,075
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR ONG HUI PENG (N16235U)>		
6 TEO LEONG KHOON
1,770,150
7 CH’NG PAED WEE
1,634,875
8 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
1,341,200
<CIMB BANK FOR TAN HOCK VENG (MY0715)>		
9 CHAN HENG SOON
1,279,049
10 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
830,000
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHEAH YUET CHING (J B BINTANG-CL)>		
11 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
825,000
<CIMB BANK FOR PHANG CHET PING (MY0322)		
12 CHAN HENG SOON
722,500

%

			

1
2
3

13 RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
596,175
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR MOHAMAD AZRIL BIN ABDUL RAZAK (CEB)>		
14 KHAIRIL ANUAR BIN ABDULLAH
589,500
15 VOON JYE WAH
574,000
16 AMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
516,300
<TANG PEN SAN (9984-1101)>		
17 JONG PIT FONG
506,925
18 LUM YIN MUI
494,000
19 KOH THIN MIN
479,900
20 JS NOMINEES ( ASING) SDN BHD
457,900
<RICHMOND STATE CORPORATION (RI058)>		
21 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
455,775
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TEH YOKE WAN @ TEE YOKE WAN (JKAPAR-CL)>		
22 CIMSEC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
412,500
<CIMB BANK FOR LEE ENG ENG (MY0030)>		
23 LAI KUM SIM
375,000
24 MOHD RAZALI BIN ABDUL RAHMAN
375,000
25 MAYBAN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
372,000
<MOHAMED ADZMAN BIN MOHAMED SURA)		
26 SIM MUI KHEE
369,000
27 AFFIN NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD
350,000
<PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR KOH JUI LIAN (KDHO682M)>		
28 CHONG WEN TAT
323,925
29 LOW KOK MENG
300,000
30 TAY AH HOCK @ TEE TIAM HOCK
300,000
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30.32
5.70
4.25
4.13
3.93
3.52
3.25
2.66
2.54
1.65
1.64
1.44
1.18
1.17
1.14
1.03
1.01
0.98
0.95
0.91
0.91
0.82
0.74
0.74
0.74
0.73
0.70
0.64
0.60
0.60
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Notice Of Seventh Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of VisDynamics Holdings Berhad will be
held at Tiara 1 & 2, Level 2, The Royale Bintang Kuala Lumpur, 17-21, Jalan Bukit Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur
on Friday, 27 April 2012 at 10.00 a.m., for the purpose of considering the following businesses:
AGENDA
Ordinary Business
1. To lay the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 October
2011 together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Refer to Explanatory
Note A

2. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM120,000.00 for the financial year
ended 31 October 2011.

Ordinary Resolution 1

3. To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Article 69
of the Articles of Association:
		(i) Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaluddin
		(ii) Mr Choy Ngee Hoe

Ordinary Resolution 2

4. To re-appoint Messrs Wong Weng Foo & Co. as auditors of the Company and
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Ordinary Resolution 3

SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolution:
5. Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 		
			
		“THAT subject to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 and approvals of the
relevant governmental / regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby
empowered to issue shares in the Company, at any time until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting and upon such terms and conditions and
for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit,
provided that the aggregate number of shares issued does not exceed 10% of
the total issued capital of the Company at the time of issue.”		

Ordinary Resolution 4

6. Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company 		
				
“THAT the amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company as set
out in Appendix I contained in the Annual Report 2011 be and are hereby
approved.”		

Special Resolution 1

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
LAI CHEE WAH (MAICSA 7031124)
PEGGY CHEK HONG KIM (MIA 23475)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
Dated this 6th April 2012
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NOTES:
1. Every member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy / proxies to
attend and vote for him/her but such attendance shall automatically revoke the proxy’s authority. A
proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a member of the Company,
he need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of
Companies.
2. A member shall be entitled to appoint at least one (1) and up to three (3) proxies to attend at the same
meeting. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proxies shall not be valid unless he/she
specifies the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
.
3. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in common or usual form) under the hand of the
appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the
seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
4. The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is
signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company at 10th Floor Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur not less
than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.
EXPLANATORY NOTE A
The Audited Financial Statements under this agenda item is meant for discussion only as the provision of
Section 169(1) of the Companies Act 1965 does not require a formal approval of the shareholders and hence
this item is not put forward for voting.
AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES PURSUANT TO SECTION 132D OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965
The proposed Ordinary Resolution 4 is a renewal mandate for the issue of shares under Section 132D of the
Act. If passed, it will give flexibility to the Directors of the Company to issue shares up to a maximum of ten per
centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company at the time of such issuance of shares (other than
bonus or right issue) and for such purposes as they consider would be in the best interest of the Company
without having to convene separate general meetings. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general
meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
The general mandate will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including
but not limited to the placing of shares, funding future investment(s), acquisition(s) and working capital and
thereby reducing administrative time and cost associated with the convening of such meeting(s). No shares
had been issued and allotted by the Company since obtaining the said authority from its shareholders at the
last Annual General Meeting held on 21 April 2011.
SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY
The Special Resolution 1, if passed, will render the Articles of Association of the Company to be in line with the
recent amendments to the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
“For the purpose of determining who shall be entitled to attend this meeting, the Company shall be requesting
the Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to make available to the Company pursuant to Article 50(f) of the
Articles of Association of the Company and Rule 7.16(2) of the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad, a Record of Depositors as at 23 April 2012 and only a Depositor whose name
appear on such Record of Depositors shall be entitled to attend this meeting.”
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APPENDIX I
1. THAT the Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association be amended as follows:Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class
or classes or shares at meetings of Members or classes of Members, each
Member shall be entitled to be present and to vote. There shall be no
restriction as to the qualification of the proxy.

Rights to vote, attend,
qualification & rights of
proxy to speak

The Member may vote in person or by proxy or by attorney or authorised
representative. On resolution to be decided on a show or hands, every
Member, who is personally present and entitled to vote, or by proxy or by
attorney or other duly authorised representative shall have one (1) vote.
On resolution to be decided by a poll, every Member present in person or by
proxy or by attorney or other duly authorised representative shall have one
(1) vote for every one (1) share he holds.
A proxy appointed to attend and vote a meeting of a Company shall have
the same rights as the member to speak at the meeting.		

2. THAT the following Article 63(c) of the Company’s Articles of Association be inserted immediately after
Article 63(b):ARTICLE 63 (c)
Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in
the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no
limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each
omnibus account it holds.
An authorised nominee defined under the Central Depositories Act which is exempted from compliance
with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of Central Depositories Act.
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VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (677095-M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM

Number Of Shares Held

* I/We
of
being a Member(s) of VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD (677095-M), hereby appoint
Name

Address

NRIC / Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings (%)

*And/or (delete as appropriate)

*And/or (delete as appropriate)

or failing him/her, *THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING as *my/our proxy(ies), to vote for *me/us on *my/our behalf at the
Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Tiara 1 & 2, Level 2, The Royale Bintang Kuala Lumpur, 17-21,
Jalan Bukit Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 27 April 2012 at 10.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof .
#

If you wish to appoint other person(s) to be your proxy/proxies, kindly delete the words “or failing him/her, The Chairman
of the Meeting” and insert the name(s) of the person(s) desired.

Mark either box if you wish to direct the proxy how to vote. If no mark is made the proxy may vote on the resolution or abstain
from voting as the proxy think fit. If you appoint more than one proxy and wish them to vote differently this should be specified.
My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:
Ordinary Resolution

For

1

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM120,000.00 for the financial year
ended 31 October 2011

2

To re-election of Datuk Azzat Bin Kamaluddin and Choy Ngee Hoe as Directors
in accordance with Article 69 of the Company’s Article of Association

3

To re-appoint Messrs Wong Weng Foo & Co. as the Auditors Company and
authorised the Directors to fix their remuneration

4

Special Business:

Against

To approve the Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies
Act, 1965
Special Resolution
5

Special Business:
To propose Amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company

*

Delete if not applicable.

Signed this

day of

2012
Signature / Common Seal of Shareholder

Notes:
(1)

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy / proxies to attend and vote for him/her but such attendance
shall automatically revoke the proxy’s authority. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. If the proxy is not a member of the
Company, he need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies.

(2)

A member shall be entitled to appoint at least one (1) and up to three (3) proxies to attend at the same meeting. Where a member appoints more
than one (1) proxy, the proxies shall not be valid unless he/she specifies the proportion of his/her shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

(3)

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in common or usual form) under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised
in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

(4)

The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 10th Floor Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250
Kuala Lumpur not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

please fold along this line (1)

AFFIX
STAMP

The Company Secretary

VISDYNAMICS HOLDINGS BERHAD
10th Floor Menara Hap Seng
No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

please fold along this line (2)
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